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This report has been formulated in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009
(sections 104 & 201) and Local Government Regulations 2012 (sections 181 — 190, 199, 273).
The 2023 - 2024 Annual Report covers the associated compliance elements and provides a
strategic overview of council.

Yarrabah Shire covers the traditional lands of the Gunggandji and Yidinji Peoples. We
acknowledge the elders past, present and emerging. In the spirit of partnership, we aim to
work together as stakeholders and trustees of the land.
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PROFILE

Yarrabah Shire is nestled within the
traditional lands of the Gunggandji and
Yidinji Peoples and is situated on Cape
Grafton with the major settlement within
Mission Bay (Mira Wun Gula), 10kms due
east of Cairns (52 kms south-east by
sealed road) of Cairns in Far North
Queensland, Australia.

Geographically, the land area can be
described as a long slender triangular
shape from the tip of False Cape in the
north, to Palmer Point in the south,
bounded in the west by the Murray Prior
Range, known locally as the ‘Walls of
Jerusalem’ and the Malbon Thompson
Range and the Coral Sea to the east.
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It has an overall length of about 35 kms and is 2.5 kms wide in the south, but broadens out to almost
8 kms across the northern part and comprises a total area of 159.4 km2.

At the time of the last Census, Yarrabah was reported to have a population of 2,559 with over 97%
of respondents identifying as Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander. The median age was 22.

The accuracy of these official figures are questioned. Members of the Yarrabah Local Disaster
Management Group (LDMG) promote a population figure of closer to 4,500 permanent residents.
(This figure is based on data collected by organisations during the COVID Pandemic lockdown).

Yarrabah Shire is the largest discrete community in Australia. We truly are ‘paradise by the sea’.
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MAYORS MESSAGE

It is with great pleasure that | present the Yarrabah
Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report for the financial
year period ending 30 June 2024.

I mark this report by paying my respect to the Traditional
Custodians of Yarrabah, the leaders past, present and
emerging. | also acknowledge all Yarrabah people whose
elders past, present and emerging also call Yarrabah home
and support the progress of this Shire.

As you would be aware, Council elections were held in
March this year. | thank the community for their faith in electing me as your Mayor. Along with
my Councillors, you have my promise that we will work tirelessly to advance the needs of our
people and this community.

| would also like to acknowledge the efforts of the previous Mayor and Councillors and thank
them for their service.

Since our election, your new Council has been busy. We have taken the opportunity to commence
a review Council’s Strategic Plan, to align with the aspirations that we were elected to deliver.
This Plan will be released once finalised.

A key focus of this Council is to work collaboratively with other key stakeholders and community
organisations to bring future economic and social prosperity to our Shire.

We have also been proactive in continuing the lobbying undertaken by the former Council to State
and Federal Governments to secure additional housing, employment and educational
opportunities for Yarrabah people.

| am pleased to report that this has resulted in the continued support of the Balamba and Ambrym
Street projects, work on which will commence shortly. In preparation of these projects, Council
will be constructing seven transitional houses, which are critical in addressing accommodation
needs while the Ambrym Street project is undertaken, as well as our current upgrade program for
existing social housing.

The “Healthy Housing” program has continued in conjunction with a number of State Government
departments and community organisations, with the eventual outcome being that all social
housing will be included in this program.

Community consultation and feasibility studies for the the Micro-grid project are being finalised.
If funding is successful, this will deliver solar on rooftops of houses and Council buildings and is
expected to reduce the cost of electricity by 20% for households and deliver new jobs to Yarrabah.

In closing, | thank my Councillors (past and present) and our staff for their efforts throughout this
year.

Daryl Sextor//- \} J J‘SV
S
Mayor
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COUNCILLORS
Financial year to 16 March 2024

Councillor Kenneth Jackosn Councillor Brian Underwood  Councillor Lucresia Willett Councillor Hezron Murgha

Financial Year from 16 March 2024

Councillor Amy Neal Councillor Hezron Murgha Councillor Brian Underwood Councillor Michael Sands

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire has a Council that consists of the Mayor and four Councillors who
are chosen by the community through elections every four years. The Council and Councillors
have the responsibility of representing the views of the residents of Yarrabah and following
the provisions of the Local Government Act 2009, which is the main legislation that governs
the Council. A Councillor is part of a team that has the trust of the residents of Yarrabah to
make decisions on their behalf and should therefore uphold high standards of conduct. The
aim of the main legislation is to ensure this.
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The Council is guided by five (5) core values that shape its vision, mission and goals. These
values reflect the Council's commitment to serve the public with integrity, excellence,
accountability and sustainability. The five (5) values are equally important and relevant to the
Council's role and responsibilities. They are:

1. Ethical and legal conduct of Councillors

2. Transparent and effective processes; and decision making in the public interest

3. Democratic representation, social inclusion and meaningful community engagement
4, Good governance of, and by, the local government

5. Sustainable development and management of assets and infrastructure, and delivery

of effective services.

According to the Local Government Act 2009, Councillors have specific roles and
responsibilities. These include:

1. Making sure the local government fulfills its duties under the Local Government Act
2009

Making sure the Corporate Plan is implemented
Making sure the local government follows all relevant laws
Providing effective leadership to the local government and the community

Engaging in council meetings, policy development and decision-making

o v A~ W N

Being responsible to the community for how the local government performs

The main role of Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council’s elected member is to represent the
interests of Yarrabah as a whole.

Councillors play a vital role in ensuring effective local government that works to enhance the
well-being of Yarrabah residents. They advocate for the strengths and opportunities of
Yarrabah, build positive relationships and establish collaborative partnerships with all levels
of government to serve the interests of the community.

OUR VISION
We are all proud Yarrabians.

Together we will pave the way to a
progressive and sustainable community for
our future generations.

8
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CEO’S REPORT

Richard Wright
Chief Executive Officer

| am happy to present the Annual Report for the Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire
Council for the year ended 30 June 2024. This report is prepared in
accordance to Section 182 of the Queensland Local Government Regulation
2012 and provides a detailed account of councils’ functions and
performance.

Although met with a number of challenges over the past year, mainly as a
result of escalating costs of materials and contracted services, Council has continued to strive for better
liveability in our community. The focus has been on sustainability, resulting in a budget surplus and
unqualified audit again in our financial reports for this year.

In March this year local government elections were held, resulting in several changes of your elected officials.
This has included a new Mayor and two new Councillors, with two Councillors returning. The Mayor and
Councillors have now undertaken compulsory training and are quickly adopting to the legislative
requirements of these positions.

From an operational perspective, | thank the previous Council for their efforts and look forward to continuing
to work towards the visions and strategies of the new Council.

The new Council has continued the legacy of their predecessors in strongly lobbying for solutions to address
the housing needs of this community, as demonstrated by ongoing support for the Balamba and Ambrym
Street projects, in addition to seven transitional houses to assist with these projects, as well as the
operational needs of our upgrades programme for existing social housing.

A focus has also been placed on debt recovery, in particular on arrears for social housing rent, with the
Housing Team proactively working with tenants to voluntarily enter into repayment plans. This has a long
way to go to make this area of Council business financially viable.

Our Building team are committed to delivery of the various projects, including new constructions (both
housing and Council infrastructure), upgades, repairs & maintenance, and the “Healthy Housing”
programme. New processes implemented are having effect on productivity and cost savings in these areas.

In closing, | thank all Council staff for their dedication and efforts over this past year and look forward to
working with them this year to advance the needs of this community.

Richard Wright
Chief Executive Officer
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

People & Communities
People and Communities Department, comprises of the following functions for Council:

Community Housing

Yarrabah Indigenous Knowledge Centre

School Bus Service

Arts and Cultural Precinct

Community Events, Programs and Communication
Housekeeping

Human Resources

Workplace Health and Safety and Security

Early Learning Centre

O O 0O 0O O 0o o 0 O

Community Housing

Inspections Completed

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May- Jun-24
24

Annual Rent Charged: $2,685,781.65

Annual Rent Received: $2,171,727.43

Annual Rental Arrears payments Received: $ 223,294.94
Yarrabah Indigenous Knowledge Centre

Throughout the financial year, the Yarrabah Indigenous Knowledge Centre (YIKC) has
welcomed a significant number of community members. The YIKC serves as a vital space for
the community, offering a venue for various events and activities that bring people together
and foster cultural and educational enrichment
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e Meeting

o Weekly first 5 forever program

e Holiday program

e Study area

e Homework Centre

e Employment providers for job opportunities

Annual Statistics

DOOR COUNT FIRST 5 PRIMARY HIGH SCHOOL ROOM HIRE
FOREVER SCHOOLBUS  BUS

ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL ANNUAL

4054 304 10,821 9,894 504

FIRST 5 FOREVER

This year, we held two promotional First 5 Forever sessions. The first session was a success
with high attendance and engagement, while the second session saw a slightly smaller
turnout. Both sessions featured engaging activities such as singing, counting, painting, and
drawing, allowing children to create items to take home.

EASTER PROGRAM
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Our Easter Program was a joyful event. We invited guest speaker Meagan Noble, who,
drawing on her Christian background, shared the significance of Easter with the children,
offering them valuable insights into the holiday’s meaning. Meagan generously provided
gifts for the children, adding to the joy of the event and bringing a special atmosphere of
kindness and celebration to the YIKC

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENTS AND CELEBRATIONS

PROTECTIVE SERVICES GRADUATION

Protective services graduation was held in the IKC it was such a pleasure watching our
younger generation excel at job opportunities and showcase their achievements.

UNDER 8’S DAY

These are some photos of the under 8s day at the Yarrabah pre-prep center.

The Yarrabah indigenous knowledge Centre had an Arts N Craft station making sea creature,
fish, octopus, crabs out of colored plates, streamers, glitters.

Yarrabah Arts and Cultural Precinct
Overview

Established in 2002, the Yarrabah Arts and Cultural Precinct (YACP) is a focal point for
empowering local artists and preserving traditignal arts in weaving, painting, textile, and
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ceramics. As a community initiative, Yarrabah Arts and Craft has gained national and
international recognition, underscoring the potential of the YACP to support the long-term
economic and cultural objectives of the Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council. By promoting
traditional practices, the YACP offers a unique platform for educating and engaging visitors
from across Australia and the world with the cultural heritage of regional Queensland.

Menmuny Museum

Housed within the Precinct, the Menmuny Museum holds a nationally significant collection
that provides in-depth insights into Yarrabah’s cultural and historical journey. The museum
documents the impact of Christianity and mission life on the community since the
establishment of the Yarrabah Mission at Cape Grafton in 1892, offering valuable resources
for research and storytelling.

Funding and Partnerships

The YACP operates with the support of major funding partners, including Arts Queensland
through the Backing Indigenous Art (BIA) initiative and Creative Australia through the
Indigenous Visual Arts Infrastructure Strategy (IVAIS). These partnerships are essential to
YACP’s mission, supporting both emerging and established artists through a comprehensive
suite of visual arts and crafts programs. The YACP’s annual program emphasizes professional
career development while integrating with educational, health, and welfare services,
fostering healing, wellbeing, and learning opportunities.

Community and Artist Development

Yarrabah artists have made notable progress, with involvement in prestigious events such as:
- The Cairns Indigenous Art Fair (CIAF)

- Darwin Aboriginal Art Fair (DAAF)

- ‘Charcoal’ exhibition at the Cairns Courthouse Gallery

These artists also feature in exhibitions across Queensland and interstate, bolstered by a
partnership with TAFE Queensland, which delivers a Certificate lll in Visual Arts to nurture
upcoming talent.

Highlights and Achievements
Key achievements within the YACP include:

Philomena Yeatman
Winning the National Indigenous Fashion Award in the Textile category and reaching the
finals in the NQ Ceramic Awards.

Salome Yeatman
A recent TAFE graduate, winning the CIAF Emerging Artist Award.
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The YACP itself being honoured with the CIAF Art Centre Award, solidifying its reputation as
a leader in Indigenous arts.

Future Direction

Looking forward, the YACP aims to leverage social media to expand audience engagement,
influence future programming, and bolster social and cultural cohesion within the Yarrabah
community. Additionally, the YACP has secured funding from the Indigenous Regional and
Development Fund (IRADF) to enhance cultural management of the Menmuny Museum
collection. This initiative will include the appointment of a Project Officer who will
collaborate with Queensland Museum to provide specialized training and capacity-building
for the community.

The Yarrabah Arts and Cultural Precinct remains a beacon of cultural preservation, artistic
excellence, and community empowerment. With a strategic focus on sustainability, YACP is
committed to fostering growth and development for future generations.

Community Events and Programs

The current Community Services Officer (CSO) commenced their role in March. Since then,
the Yarrabah Community Services team has delivered several successful events, showcasing
the community’s spirit, culture, and collaboration. This report provides an overview of key
community events held throughout the vyear, highlighting community engagement,

partnerships, and program impacts.
Event Summaries

ANZAC Day

The ANZAC Day service took place at the Yarrabah RSL, honouring veterans and fostering
community unity. The service was followed by a breakfast with veterans, creating a warm and

respectful environment for commemoration and connection.

Yarrabah Foundation Day — Coming of the Gospel

15
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Yarrabah Foundation Day was a collaborative success, with Council working alongside the
Gunggandji Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC and Gunggandji-Mandingalbay Yidinji Peoples
Prescribed Body Corporate Aboriginal Corporation. The event included a community Kup-
Murri provided by Northern PBC, which was widely appreciated, as well as a Council-hosted
sausage sizzle and water distribution for attendees.

Yarrabah NAIDOC Event

The Yarrabah NAIDOC celebration took place at Bishop Malcolm Park with this year’s theme,
“Keep the Fire Burning.” Community members participated in a march from Balma along
Workshop Road, concluding with festivities at the park. Highlights included awards for best
float, King, Queen, Prince, and Princess of the event. Elders were treated to a special lunch at
the Community Hall, and local bands performed, providing entertainment for all ages.

Food Cube Project

In partnership with Health and Wellbeing and the University of the Sunshine Coast, Yarrabah
introduced the Food Cube Project, aimed at enhancing food security and promoting the value
of community gardening. Twelve food cubes were distributed, allowing residents to grow
fruits and vegetables. Early feedback suggests a positive impact, with households successfully
using the produce in their daily meals.

Legends of the League

The Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council collaborated with the local football club to host the
Legends of the League event, featuring friendly matches between locals and former NRL
players. The event was a family-friendly success, providing an engaging day of sports and
community spirit.

Yarrabah Music Festival

The Queensland Music Festival in Yarrabah showcased emerging artists and local bands,
celebrating community talent. The daytime event included food stalls, vendors, a jumping
castle, and various family-friendly attractions, resulting in a vibrant, well-attended festival
that underscored the artistic richness of Yarrabah.

These events underscore Yarrabah Community Services’ commitment to fostering community
engagement, cultural celebration, and partnerships that contribute to the well-being of the
community. The success of these programs highlights the dedication of the Community
Services team and the strong community spirit within Yarrabah.

16
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Community Facilities

Venue Bookings for the Month total:

Community Hall Booking 90 Bookings

RTC Room 1 Booked Daily for Training- 114 Bookings
RTC Room 2 200 Bookings

RTC Room 3 87 Bookings

IKC Meeting Room 100 Bookings

HR Training Room / meeting 98 Bookings

Bishop Malcolm Park 14 Bookings

Human Resources

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council (YASC) has seen growth in its workforce throughout FY24,

with an increase in staff compared to FY23. As of 30 June 2024, the Council employed 113
staff across our four main service areas.

Staffing by Service Area

17 17 18
20 14 14
15
10 3 5 4 4
5 1 1 1 2 0 - 1 2 0 00
- —
0
Administrative Daycare Services Operational Trade Services
Services Services

Full Time Female = Full Time Male  ® Part Time Female B Part Time Male

M Casual Female B Casual Male Trainees

WORKFORCE ANALYSIS

Staff turnover during the past 12 months was approximately 7.66% down from 10.37% in
the previous year.

19
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Our employment ratios / age demographics are as follows:
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Workers Compensation — Loss of Hours
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HR KEY FOCUS FOR FY24

The key priorities for the HR during FY24 were:

e Employee Development & Training: Continuous professional development to upskill
staff.

e Implementation of E-Filing Systems: Transition to digital systems for better record-
keeping and efficiency.

e Onboarding Employee Handbook: Introduction of a comprehensive handbook to
standardize onboarding processes for all new staff.

e Work for Dole Arrangement with Wugu Nyambil: Helps unemployed community
members gain skills and experience that improve their chances of finding paid work
or employment with the Council.

Staff Professional Development
This year, those achieved included:
e Diploma in Early Childhood Education and Care (completed by 2 staff)
e First Aid & CPR (four session, attended by 53 staff members)
e Chainsaw Training (attended by 10 staff members)
e Microsoft Excel Level Two (attended by 10 staff members)
e Microsoft Word Level Two (attended by 10 staff members)
e Dealing with Difficult People or Situation (attended by 8 staff members)
e Business Writing Minute Taking (attended by 8 staff members)
e Traffic Control, part 1 (attended by 13 staff members)
e Pool Lifeguard Qualification (attended by 3 staff members)

Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

The Employee Assistance Program continued to offer critical mental health and well-being
support for staff.
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Early Learning Centre

Fee Structure

The Yarrabah Day-care fees have remained stable this past financial year at $45.00 per day.
We provide active support to parents with Child Care Subsidy (CCS) applications, maintaining
strong communication with the local Yarrabah Services Australia Office. To further assist
parents and reduce financial stress, we have introduced payment plans with fortnightly
deductions, which have successfully halved the centre's outstanding debts.

Compliance and Funding

In April, we completed the 2023-2024 Compliance and Operations Report, enabling us to
secure essential funding from the Department of Education. Additionally, supplementary
funding from Queensland Inclusion Support was obtained, allowing us to offer tailored one-
on-one support for children with specific needs, enhancing our service quality and
accessibility.

Nutrition Program

A revamped fresh food menu was introduced, eliminating processed foods, packaged items,
and high-sugar options. While the children required some time to adjust, parent and caregiver
feedback has been overwhelmingly positive, welcoming the healthier approach and
reinforcing our commitment to nutritious meal offerings.

Facility Improvements and Donations

In collaboration with Queensland First Nation Health and Wellbeing and GIVIT, the centre
benefited from the installation of new toilets and sinks, courtesy of donations from local
businesses. Additionally, several hundred toothbrushes and toothpaste kits were provided,
supporting the oral health of our children.

Through Health and Wellbeing Queensland, we also received two food cubes equipped with
soil and plants, now part of the children’s daily activities. This hands-on gardening experience
allows them to grow vegetables used in their meals, merging nutrition with early childhood
education in an engaging, practical way.

Parent Engagement and Communication

We have introduced a monthly newsletter featuring updates on various activities. Designed
with bright colours and photos from around the Day Care, the newsletter has been well
received by parents and carers, strengthening our connection and fostering open
communication between management and caregivers in support of the children’s early
learning journey.

22
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Staff Development and Training

Our commitment to staff development remains strong. Recently, two staff members
completed their Certificate Ill and Diploma in Early Childhood Learning, with another staff
member set to begin her Diploma in November. Additionally, three other staff members are
currently working towards their Certificate Ill in Early Childhood Learning, ensuring a highly
skilled team that continues to grow professionally.

Staff Turnover and Recruitment Challenges

Despite the positive strides, the centre has faced an above-average staff turnover, largely due
to employees transitioning to other sectors outside of Early Childhood. Recruitment
challenges persist, primarily due to limited availability of local candidates with relevant
experience and the lack of public transport, which affects potential employees’ ability to
commute to the centre.

The Early Learning Centre has made significant progress in supporting families, enhancing
facilities, and promoting staff development. However, addressing the ongoing recruitment
challenges remains a priority.

Workplace Health and Safety Annual report 2024

This financial year has presented several challenges for the WHS department of YASC. The
Safety Officer, in collaboration with HR, has been working to identify and meet the training
needs of the current workforce..

Training and Development

Despite some challenges, several key training courses were conducted this year:

. Chainsaw Training
. Traffic Control
J First Aid and Fire Warden Training

Additionally, administrative staff were also included in first aid training to ensure
comprehensive safety preparedness across departments.

Self-Insurance Audit

In August, YASC underwent its first Self Insurance Audit against the National Self Insurer OHS
Audit Tool, conducted by QRMC. This was a milestone for YASC as it was the first Aboriginal
Shire Council to be audited in Queensland. The audit yielded numerous positive findings,
highlighting YASC's commitment to health and safety. Key observations included:

) Active participation and candid feedback from workers involved in the audit, with a
shared understanding of the importance of health and safety in their roles.
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J Engagement from senior executives who are committed to fostering positive change
in workplace health and safety.

J Effective use of Safe Work Method Statements (SWMS) for high-risk activities, such as
the operation of powered mobile plant and grave preparation, with detailed risk assessments.

J Comprehensive risk assessments for significant events like Foundation Day and
Survival Day, identifying hazards and proposed risk control measures.

J Inclusion of safety initiatives in the 2022/23 Annual Report, such as the “Safety Circle”
Program, “Speak up Culture,” Safety Inductions, and WHS Committee activities.

J Communication of safety information through multiple channels, with weekly Safety
Briefings recognized as a valuable tool.

J Practical improvements, including the installation of mesh at the Arts Centre to
prevent bird access, and recent site evacuation drills at the Main Chambers and Works Depot
Office.

J Introduction of iAuditor for vehicle and plant pre-start inspections.

Currently, the Safety Officer is reviewing the audit draft to identify key improvement areas
and develop an action plan.

Security Management

The Safety Officer also manages YASC's Security Team, comprising six personnel on a 7-night
on / 7-day off roster, with teams of three providing security for all YASC assets and buildings.
Despite challenges, the security team has been effective in preventing damage and vandalism.
For additional asset protection, more local casual security staff were hired for the Yarrabah
Music Festival.

Safety Inductions and Committee Activities

) Yarrabah Safety Inductions: Ongoing inductions are conducted for all new staff and
contractors. YASC s also exploring an online induction program to streamline and better meet
business needs.

) Safety Committee: Meeting every three months, the Safety Committee addresses
workforce and community safety concerns. The committee includes representatives from
various YASC departments and plays a key role in fostering a safe work environment.

This report summarizes the safety initiatives, challenges, and progress within YASC for the
2024 financial year.
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Building Services

Wayne Douglas
Director — Building Services

On the 1%t of March this year | came over from QBuild to
provide my services to Council and the Yarrabah
community. My main focus since then has been to
improve the efficiency of our department as well as
improve the level of service our Building Services
department provides for Yarrabah. My approach has
been to roll up the sleeves and get involved while
maintaining a can-do attitude. Most people in the

community have seen me around and if you haven’t, |

am sure you will.

LIST OF SERVICES

o Delivery of the following Department of Housing programs:
e Repairs & Maintenance

e Healthy Housing

e Upgrades

Repairs & Maintenance to Council buildings and offices
New build of housing

Work 4 Queensland Projects

Support for YASC Infrastructure Department

o O O O O

Various other works

OPERATIONAL BREAKDOWN

Repairs & Maintenance — Overall the community’s confidence of our department’s service in

this area has been very low for a long period of time. We had many works outstanding for
way too long and people were understandably frustrated by this. This led to some required
maintenance not being reported. The standard of maintenance was also of high concern.
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With the above in mind, we have introduced many improvements in how we operate which
are designed to eventually bring the level of service to where it should be and where
community expects it to be. These improvements take time to show their effect in the data
collected but | hope that the community can notice an improvement in level of service.

We have been averaging just over 300 new work orders per month since March this year. This
does not include the Healthy Housing Round 2 work orders which add well over 100 per
month when inspections are happening. This is a high amount of work orders for our
department to deal with on a continual basis. Some of these work orders are quick fixes, many
are mid-range, and some are complex or time consuming. Many are stemming from annual
property inspections from the Department of Housing. The process for many mid-range to
complex work orders requires us to provide a quote to QBuild and obtain approval before
proceeding.

The graph below shows a general trend month to month since February this year.

Maintenance work orders over 6 months

250

200

150

100

50

Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24

GeneralR& M Healthy Homes R1 Healthy Homes R2

Healthy Housing Round 1

There were many work orders well over 1 year old and approaching 2 years late last year. The
Healthy Housing program was struggling with much confusion over where things were at.
With QBuild’s help and assistance from the entire Healthy Housing team we have now fully
completed and closed out round 1. In saying this the HH team’s final inspections for round 1
are ongoing and still raising work orders for general maintenance items. These are raised
under the R&M stream and not the Healthy Housing program.
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Healthy Housing Round 2

We are not quite halfway through round 2 initial inspections with another 57 houses yet to
be inspected. Due to us focusing on closing out round 1 and catching our breath with round
2 the inspections were halted and only resumed this week. Round 2 is much more controlled
in how we are managing the works. The HH team have changed their approach to the
procedure and council is having a say in how this is rolled out. There is much less confusion
and the outcome for the tenants should be vastly improved.

In general terms the Healthy Housing Program is, | believe, a great program for any
community and we are lucky to have this program first here in Yarrabah. We are leading the
way and we have support from various departments to help make this program a big success.
It is great to see all government departments, QBuild and council working together to bring a
program such as this to this community. Cooperation has been unparalleled in my opinion.
We are able to deliver maintenance items which the regular programs do not allow and the
focus is on the health and wellbeing of the tenants rather than the asset.

UPGRADES

The upgrade program is focused on lifting the standard of living for Yarrabah in general. This
is an ongoing process and there is only so much we can achieve in any one financial year with
regards to upgrades. In saying that we are processing a good number of upgrades this year
with focus on kitchens’ bathrooms and flooring. The process of identifying an upgrade
required and reaching the actual delivery of the upgrade is normally long and can be difficult
for tenants to understand why. Mostly tenants see people come and take photos, then others
come and take photos then others come to inspect, and the tenant is confused by this process
and the delays in reaching to the end. Unfortunately, this process cannot be avoided but all
steps are necessary to ensure an appropriate outcome for all. A couple of good outcomes for
tenants are shown below.

58 Stanley S, Yarrabah
-16°54'41" 14
03/0
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REPAIRS TO COUNCIL ASSETS

Council has a vast range of asset buildings which require maintenance. Some are in great
condition and others are lacking a bit of TLC. It has been identified that a maintenance
schedule is required to maintain these assets in the best condition they can be within reason.
We are yet to implement this program but this has not stopped general maintenance
occurring.

NEW BUILD OF HOUSING

We have completed 3 new houses this last year and moved tenants into them upon
completion. One major extension to the rear of another property in place of a plug in has also
been completed. Two duplexes are currently under construction and are on track for
completion early 2025. We also have progressed plans to replace several standard plug ins
which are in very poor condition. All this requires funding from the government, and we are
lucky enough to have people pushing hard to see the funding released to council so we can
proceed with improving housing numbers in our community.

We are well advanced with plans for improvements to housing levels along Ambrym
Street/Back Beach Road area as well as Balamba.

In order to start the improvements to Ambrym Street/Back Beach Road area we have to house
people somewhere. Council has engaged a company to build a total of 7 transitional dwellings
and truck them in. Works will begin soon on the civil work required to the area to service
these transitional houses with hopes to have these installed around mid-2025.

W
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Council understands the overcrowding issues within our community and are doing whatever
we can to improve this situation.
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Project 81907 — New Construction Works

* 3 Houses handed to tenancy during June/July 2024
* 2xDuplex sites underway

* 1x3 bedroom progressing well anticipate
September 2024 completion

WORK 4 QUEENSLAND

Several sheds are being built in the Works Depot in order to improve our asset buildings and
better facilitate our operations within council. These are at varying stages with the Water
Gang shed completed. The machinery shed is almost complete and the roof trusses are
currently being installed on the EHO shed. Various other projects have been completed with
one of those being the fencing upgrade to the cemetery.

The Work 4 Queensland funding is of great benefit to our community and provides funding
for community improvements as well as employment opportunities for some Yarrabah locals.

SUPPORT FOR INFRASTRUCTURE DEPARTMENT

Within council works department there are two main areas, Building Services and
Infrastructure. Itis vital that both departments work together to support each other to benefit
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our community and provide the service levels desired. While we are separate departments
we combine where needed to do what needs to be done. The support works both ways and
Infrastructure also support Building Services as needed. Unfortunately, funerals are all too
frequent in our community and both departments work together to ensure the requirements
at the cemetery are met and happen as smoothly as possible.

VARIOUS OTHER WORKS

Earlier this year our carpenters assisted Hutchinson Builders install a toilet block at the
primary school. This was a good outcome for council and a good experience for our
carpenters. The comments from Hutchinson Builders were that our carpenters “fitted well
within their team” and “had a good level of skill and knowledge”.

We also fitted a bunch of paintings and signage to the new Gindaja office on Workshop
Road which was required on short notice for the official opening. The work was performed
well, on time and within budget.

GENERAL

I am happy to add that one of the issues with productivity within
our carpenter team appears to have been solved with council
assisting the boys to acquire their own tool kits. These kits were
important to ensure that required work can be performed
efficiently.

The team had big smiles on their faces when the kits arrived and
there was no doubting their appreciation of this being
organised for them. Look after your kits boys! Clinton Smith
pictured right with his new impact screw gun.

Staff changes: Apart from myself coming on board we have strengthened our
administration team which is shared between infrastructure and Building Services. The
admin team is paramount to successful operations within the Works Depot generally. Henry
Miller reinstated as Building & Upgrade Manager. While at the beginning of the year
presented challenges, we have since made significant improvements to our operations,
putting us in a stronger position to effectively deliver our services moving forward.

LIST OF IMPROVMENTS IMPLEMENTED OR IN THE PROCESS OF IMPLEMENTATION

o New software — We are very close to the new tracking software being fully implemented
and going live. This will enable us to better track works and ensure nothing is forgotten
about. Much thought has gone into this to create a system which will provide us with the
tools needed to handle the high levels of work orders and various projects from start to
completion.
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o Creation of a quoting spreadsheet to quickly create quotations as well as track the quote
status and again to ensure quoted works do not get forgotten about.

o Creation of job card calculator spreadsheet which quickens the processing time of each
& every work order.

o Ensureregular inspections occur of works in progress and works that are completed. This
is regarded as highly important to lift the quality of works within our community. You will
see me out in the community as well as our staff conducting site inspections and talking
with tenants.

o Communication between all council staff, contractors, tenants, QBuild and Housing
personnel to ensure the service we provide is as good as it can be. This was highlighted
as highly important in a meeting in February between our CEO, me and contractors to get
an understanding of problems in dealing with council. Feedback generally on this issue
now is very positive from my observations. It is paramount that staff be contactable when
needed.

o Team environment within the whole Works team. Our approach generally has been to
help each other to succeed and maintain a friendly demeanour while at work. Emphasis
on the word “team” is something | find very important. We don’t succeed if we are not
acting as a team.

o Open door policy. | encourage contractors, workers and staff to drop in to discuss any
issue with me at any time. The carpet in my office is looking worse for wear though, LOL!

o Lower response times to answer emails and provide information requested from
stakeholders as well as following up on requests to ensure there is an outcome.

o Our carpentry team has shown significant improvement in efficiency with the
introduction of the new tool kits. This has led to a noticeable increase in productivity,
positively impacting the profit from work orders. The team's primary focus has been on
fencing maintenance, with additional tasks added as needed. These efforts are now
clearly reflected in the team’s timesheets and job card processing.

o Cooperation between council staff and stakeholders such as Housing and QBuild. This has
been encouraged as better cooperation leads to better and faster outcomes for the
community.

CONCLUDING COMMENTS

We are committed to continually improving our services to better meet the needs of our
community and provide a high-level service point for stakeholders. No problem or issue
should be unresolved as there is always a way forward. We must continually talk and listen to
tenants and come to an understanding of the issues and provide effective solutions. we can
foster stronger relationships and a more responsive service.

As the building industry evolves, so too will our operations, and we will consistently adapt to
meet these changes. | encourage all staff to voice their concerns, share ideas, and contribute
to discussions. We are all vital to the success of the team, and while respect for roles is
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important, it's essential to remember that we are all equal contributors to our collective

mission.

WFQ 21-24
New Works Shed In Progress

In Progress
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WFQ 21-24
New Works Shed In Progress

In Progress

. R

* LRRG Daycare — Stormwater upgrades - Complete

Local Recovery * LRRG PCYC Stormwater upgrades - Complete
il « LRRG Disaster Coordination Centre Stormwater
and ReSIllence Resilience Project - WIP

Grant

Page |
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Infrastructure

Sam Bann
Director — Infrastructure

The infrastructure department is pleased to present its annual report. | would also like to
thank Council for the opportunity to undertake the roles and responsibilities of the
Infrastructure Director:

Animal Management

Aquatic Centre

Boilermaker

Environmental Health

Essential Services Water & Wastewater
Fleet

Parks and Gardens

Roads

Solid Waste

o O 0O 0o o 0 o O ©°

YASC welcomed multiple casual staff within the following teams below:

Animal Control
Environmental Health
Aquatic Centre

o O O O

Administration

YASC infrastructure Staff continued to participate in all community events council hosted in
2024. The community faced an emotional year with over 30+ funerals taking place in
community which resulted in shut down periods.

Animal Management Team faces multiple challenges on a daily basis with roam animals and
vandalism to our impound facility resulting in high risk horse round up every day.

Aquatic Centre has employed 2 additional Casual staff to assist with Lifeguard duties.

Environmental Health Team participating in the Healthy housing program inspecting and
educating community around general healthy living practices including pet ownership. During
these inspections we identify pest/rodent issues within premises and carry our pest
management treatment pre and post. To date YASC Pest team have completed over 100 pest
job in 2024 creating revenue for YASC.

Essential Services Team operating as per their DWQMP, with operating for numerous years
without automated telemetry systems, having to operate critical water and wastewater
infrastructure manually. Ageing infrastructure resulted in various crisis from water supply,
monitoring and quality control of supply in the reticulation system.
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YASC have completed water supply/security business case for a proposed water treatment
plant. As per the recommended pathogen log reduction target table YASC have agreed on a
Category 4 system. Which will enable YASC to meet current and future demands. A cost
estimate has been extracted from the business case to apply for additional funds to build the
proposed water treatment plant.

YASC has continued to work closely with Water supply regulators (RDMW), co regulators (QH
— TPHU) and other State departments to secure funding for infrastructure upgrades.

YASC have also received approvals for the reef guardian projects below:

o Switch board and aerators upgrade
o DE sludge lagoons (STP)
o Replace underground fuel tanks

Fleet Management Team carrying out maintenance and repairs to our fleets, including
servicing and monitoring our SPS and Bore station backup generator supply. Auctioned of
aged fleet held in September 2024

Parks and Garden Team continuing to carry out general lawn maintenance and participating
in our current waste strategy collecting rubbish. Parks Team facing significant challenges
maintaining Majority of the community with only 4 staff.

Roads Team participated in roads recovery program repairing multiple washouts and sink
holes, various drain repairs throughout community including reactive repairs between
projects.

ATSI Health team were successful in additional funding to assist with extra resource including
VET Visit, vehicle upgrades and purchase of RTV to assist with health program in confined and
rough terrain areas. Additional funds also allowed YASC to employ additional staff to assist
with programs including the healthy housing program. 5 additional staff employed since May
2024, 4 of the staff have completed pest managing training and have now acquired a pest
treatment license.
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Solid Waste containers for change currently in operation. YASC was successful in obtaining
funds for the landfill site clean and preparation of site for proposed transfer station, this
funding also includes wages for operators and purchasing of yellow plant and other machinery
to assist with cleaning and managing of waste onsite site. This is a huge achievement for YASC
as these assets will generate circular economy for the council and community. YASC have
purchased the following plant and equipment and commenced waste removal from landfill
site. See below:

Waste Removed and Disposed

o 600T Concrete recycled
o 4000T general Waste removed to spring mount Waste Facility

Yarrabah ASC new plant to help manage waste and illegal dumping in community
funded by Department of Environment, Science and Innovation

Plant

o CAT Backhoe
o Kubota Tractor Slasher
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TORO Zero Turn

CASE 22T Excavator

CASE 3.5T Excavator

CASE 6T Skit Steer

ISUZU 4.5T Single Cab Tipper

ISUZU 8T Single Cab Tipper (On order)

o O O O O O

Capital works
ESSENTIAL SERVICES

SCADA System
Reservoir roof upgrade

ROADS RECOVERY PROJECTS

TC Jasper recovery

Buddabadoo Landslide (REPA)

Reseal project Backbeach road (Annual allocation ATSI TIDS)
Buddabadoo Betterment (REPA)

Range Road/Nursery Road Betterment (REPA)

Seal and unsealed package (REPA)

Buddabadoo Bridge (QDRF)

o O O O O O O

YASC is thankful for the continued funding and support received from our government and
commercial partners. Their contribution to supporting our work teams and the progress in
community is recognised and respected. All commercial engagements are secured on
contractual terms via Local Government procurement arrangements using either local buy or
vendor panel procurement platforms. Council aims to secure the best return for each dollar
allocated for projects.

Buddabadoo Landslide
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Corporate Services

Mike Mair
Director — Corporate Services

Over the past year, the Corporate Services team has worked
diligently to support all operational teams while consistently
delivering on its core responsibilities. Their efforts have
ensured seamless operations across multiple key areas,
reflecting their commitment to excellence and efficiency.

Reception Team: As the frontline of Council Chambers, the
Reception team efficiently managed all incoming calls and
served as the vital first point of contact for community
members and visitors. Despite occasional challenges in
recruiting staff for this area, the team consistently rose to the
occasion, demonstrating professionalism and maintaining a
welcoming approach to ensure a positive experience for all.

Finance Team: This team successfully managed the essential functions of accounts payable,
receivable, payroll, procurement, and financial reporting. Their dedication ensured that these
critical services were delivered on time and with accuracy throughout the year.

Stores Team: By maintaining well-stocked inventory levels, the Stores team played a crucial
role in supporting Infrastructure and Building Services, ensuring that all supplies needed for
allocated jobs were readily available.

Post Office Team: Providing essential services to the community, the Post Office team
consistently ensured that mail was sorted and ready for collection in a timely manner.
Additionally, they maintained banking services for community members from Monday to
Friday.

The dedication of the Corporate Services team has been instrumental in ensuring operational
success, and their contributions have supported Council in effectively serving the community.
| extend my sincere gratitude to all team members for their hard work and commitment over
the past year.
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STATUTORY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

This section of the Annual Report contains the prescribed information required under the
Local Government Act 2009 (LGA) and the Local Government Regulations 2012 (LGR).
Where a response from council is not applicable or no response is required it will be stated
as a “N/A” or “Nil report”.

Beneficial enterprises and business activities
LGA s41 contain a list of all the beneficial enterprises that the local government conducted
during the financial year

Nil report.

LGA s45(a) contain a list of all the business activities that the local government conducted
during the financial year

o Yarrabah Arts Centre;

. Yarrabah Tenancy Management;
o Housing Construction;

J Building Repairs & Maintenance;
. Venue & Events management;

o Animal Management;

) Environmental Health;

. Library Services;

J Newsletter & Social Media;

J Planning;

. Water / Waste Etc

° Road Infrastructure

. Trustee of DOGIT.

LGA s45(b) identify the business activities that are significant business activities
Nil report

LGA s45(c) state whether or not the competitive neutrality principle was applied to the
significant business activities, and if the principle was not applied, the reason why it was
not applied

N/A

LGA s45(d) state whether any of the significant business activities were not conducted in
the preceding financial year, i.e. whether there are any new significant business activities

N/A

Expense Reimbursement Policy
LGR s185(a) a copy of the resolutions made during the financial year under s250(1) of the
LGR (adoption of an expenses reimbursement policy);
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Resolution 01:26/07/2024

That Council resolve to endorse the recommendation presented by the Chief Executive
Officer to adopt all polices as listed in the attached schedule covering the following areas:

Statutory and Governance
Management
Early Learning Centre
Council authorise the implementation action to be carried out by CEO and Directors..

(the policy for Expenses Reimbursement was reviewed independently by council and the
endorsement was captured in a batch of policies endorsed by council at the meeting
referred above).

LGR s185(b) a list of any resolutions made during the financial year under s206(2) of the
LGR (threshold for non-current physical asset to be treated as an expense)

Nil report.

Councillors

LGR s186(a)the total remuneration, including superannuation contributions, paid to each
councillor during the financial year

NAME FRINGE

GROSS TOTAL

SALARY SUPERANUATION REMUNERATION EXPENSES  BENEFIT

TAX

Mayor Ross Andrews 91,986 11,038 103,024 7,457 11,250
Councillor Kenneth Jackson 43,601 4,796 48,397 3,159 0
Councillor Lucrecia Willett 51,712 5,688 57,401 3,556 0
Councillor Brian Underwood 55,965 6,156 62,122 2,946 0
Councillor Hezron Murgha 55,296 6,083 61,378 7,957 0
Mayor Daryl Sexton 24,693 2,914 27,607 6,561 3,750
Councillor Amy Neal 12,020 1,322 13,342 3,953 0
Councillor Michael Sands 15,284 1,681 16,965 3,612 0

Councillor Facilities
LGR s186(b) the expenses incurred by, and the facilities provided to, each councillor during
the financial year under the local government's expenses reimbursement policy
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MAYOR

. Separate office accommodation with secretarial support and
. motor vehicle for business and personal use.

COUNCILLORS

. Office accommodation and secretarial/administrative support in accordance
with the established staff structure

ADDITIONAL SUPPORT FOR COUNCILLORS

J Councillors are provided with access to facsimile, scanner, printer, photocopier
and paper shredder for business use.

J Council provides each Councillor the necessary stationery and letterhead
including postage costs, for the undertaking of duties directly associated with
their position.

. Councillors are provided with fully maintained and serviced meeting/committee
rooms, kitchen amenities and ablution facilities.

J Each Councillor has the option to be provided with an Electronic Tablet device or
laptop and mobile phone. Each device provided with appropriate software to
enable Councillors to perform their role.

Council Meetings Attended
LGR s186(c) the number of local government meetings that each councillor attended
during the financial year

Attendance at Council Meetings from July 2023 to June 2024

Ordinary Meetings  Special Meetings Total Meetings

Position Name Attended Attended Attended
Total — 12 Total —2 Total — 14

9 1 10

9 1 10

8 1 9

2 14
2 14
1 4
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Conduct and Performance of Councillors
LGR s186(d) the total number of the following during the financial year:

LGR s186(d)(i) orders made under section 150I(2) of the LGA

Nil report

LGR s186(d)(ii) orders made under section 150IA(2)(b) of the LGA
Nil report

LGR s186(d)(iii) orders made under section 150AH(1) of the LGA
Nil report

LGR s186(d)(iv) decisions, orders and recommendations made under section 150AR(1) of
the LGA

Nil report
LGR s186(e) each of the following during the financial year:

LGR 5186 (e)(i) the name of each councillor for whom a decision, order, or
recommendation under section 1501(2), 150IA(2)(b), 150AH(1) or 150 AR(1) of the LGA
was made

Nil report

LGR s186 (e) (ii) a description of the unsuitable meeting conduct, inappropriate conduct or
misconduct engaged in by each of the councillors;

Nil report

LGR s186 (e) (iii) a summary of the decision, order or recommendation made for each
councillor;

Nil report

LGR 5186 (1) (f)(i) complaints referred to the assessor under section 150P(2)(a) of the LGA
by the local government, a councillor of the local government or the chief executive officer
of the local government;

Nil report

LGR s186 (1) (f)(ii) matters, mentioned in section 150P(3) of the LGA, notified to the Crime
and Corruption Commission

Nil report




Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2023 - 2024 Page |
43
LGR 5186 (1) (f)(iii) notices given under section 150R(2) of the LGA
Nil report
LGR 5186 (1) (f)((iv) notices given under section 1505(2)(a) of the LGA
Nil report
LGR s186 (1)(f)(v) occasions information was given under section 150AF(3)(a) of the LGA
Nil report.

LGR s186 (1)(f)(vi) occasions the local government asked another entity to investigate,
under chapter 5A, part 3, division 5 of the LGA for the local government, the suspected
conduct breach of a councillor

Nil report

LGR s186 (1)(f)(vii) applications heard by the conduct tribunal under chapter 5A, part 3,
division 6 of the Act about whether a councillor engaged in misconduct or a conduct
breach

Nil report

LGR 5186 (1)(g) the total number of referral notices given to the local government under
section 150AC(1) of the LGA during the financial year.

Nil report

LGR s186(1)(h) for suspected conduct breaches the subject of a referral notice mentioned
in paragraph (g) above

e the total number of suspected conduct breaches; and
e the total number of suspected conduct breaches for which an investigation was
not started or was discontinued under section 150AEA of the LGA.

Nil report

LGR s186(1)(i) the number of decisions made by the local government under section
150AG(1) of the LGA during the financial year.

Nil report

LGR s186(1)(j) the number of matters not decided by the end of the financial year under
section 150AG(1) of the LGA.

Nil report

LGR s186(1)(k) the average time taken by the local government in making a decision under
section 150AG(1) of the LGA.
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Nil report

Administration Action Complaints
LGR s187(1)(a) a statement about the local government's commitment to dealing fairly
with administrative action complaints;

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council is committed to the principles of natural justice and
fairness in all administrative complaint dealings. Council intends to provide a level of
customer service that does not attract complaints, but acknowledges the right of persons to
provide feedback, both positive and negative, on its services and/or to lodge a complaint
about a decision or other action it takes. Council’s complaints process is available on
Councils website and enables Council to respond to complaints accurately and in a timely
manner to ensure outcomes are achieved and delivered

LGR s187(1)(b) a statement about how the local government has implemented its
complaints management process, including an assessment of the local government's
performance in resolving complaints under the process.

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council has implemented its complaints management process and
assessment using appropriate tools and processes, which encompasses confidentiality,
procedural fairness, and independent assessment and efficiency principles. Council commits
to providing adequate resources and trained officers to deal with complaints and to record
and analyse complaints data. All complaints are treated with the upmost care and
consideration. Our aim is to address issues, resolve matters appropriately and add value to
the council.

LGR s187(2)(a) the number of the following during the financial year.
LGR s187(2)(a)(i) administrative action complaints made to the local government;
Nil report

LGR s187(2)(a)(ii) administrative action complaints resolved by the local government
under the complaints management process;

Nil report

LGR s187(2)(a)(iii) administrative action complaints not resolved by the local government
under the complaints management process; and

Nil report

LGR s187(2)(b) the number of administrative action complaints not resolved by the local
government under the complaints management process that were made in a previous
financial year.

Nil report
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Overseas Travel
LGR s188(1)(a) for a councillor - the name of the councillor

Nil report

LGR s188(1)(b) for a local government employee — that person’s name and position held
Nil report

LGR s188(1)(c) the destination of the overseas travel

Nil report

LGR s188(1)(d) the purpose of the overseas travel

Nil report

LGR s188(1)(e) the cost of the overseas travel

Nil report

LGR s188(2) The annual report may also contain any other information about the overseas
travel the local government considers relevant.

N/A
Expenditure on Grants to Community Organisations

LGR s189(1) a summary of the local government’s expenditure for the financial year on
grants to community organisations

The Council did not grant any funds to community organizations. However, the Council did
provide donations , as addressed in s 189(2)(c)(ii) for sporting and cultural activities.

Local Government Discretionary Funds
LGR s189(2) the following information about the local government’s discretionary funds—

LGR s189 (2)(a) the total amount budgeted for the financial year as the local government’s
discretionary funds;

$6,000

LGR s189(2)(b) the prescribed amount (0.1% of the local government’s revenue from
general rates for the previous financial year) for the local government for the financial
year;

Nil Report. Not a rates based Council

LGR s189(2)(c) the total amount of discretionary funds budgeted for the financial year for
councillors to allocate for each of the following purposes:
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Nil report
LGR s189(2)(c)(i) capital works of the local government that are for a community purpose
Nil report
LGR s189(2)(c)(ii) other community purposes;
$1,000

LGR s189(2)(d) the amount of discretionary funds budgeted for use by each councillor for
the financial year;

Nil Report

LGR s189(2)(e) if a councillor allocates discretionary funds in the financial year:
LGR s189(2)(e)(i) the amount allocated;

Nil Report.

LGR s189(2)(e)(ii) the date the amount was allocated;

Nil Report.

LGR s189(2)(e)(iii) the way mentioned in section 202(1) in which the amount was
allocated;

Nil Report.

LGR s189(2)(e)(iv) if the amount was allocated to a person or organisation—the name of
the person or organisation to whom the allocation was made;

Nil Report.

LGR s189(2)(e)(v) the purpose for which the amount was allocated, including sufficient
details to identify how the funds were, or are to be, spent.

Nil Report.

Implementing the Corporate Plan
LGR s190(1)(a) the chief executive officer's assessment of the local government's progress
towards implementing its 5-year corporate plan and annual operational plan

On 15 June 2022, Council endorsed the Corporate plan 2022 —2027. The Corporate Plan sets
the strategic direction and priorities for Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council for the next five
years and focuses on the contribution that Council will make in realising the vision for
Yarrabah. The Corporate Plan is based on three Themes. Each is supported by Objectives and
Strategies that reflect what Council and the Community want to be support our foundations.

e Theme 1. Economy, Environment, People and Culture;
e Theme 2. Services and Infrastructure;
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e Theme 3. Governance

Following the local government elections in March 2024, the new Council is in the process of
reviewing the Corporate Plan to ensure alignment with their aspirations.

Progress to achieving these objectives is addressed in Departmental reports.

LGR s190(1)(b) particulars of other issues relevant to making an informed assessment of
the local government's operations and performance in the financial year.

Nil report.

LGR s190(1)(c) an annual operations report for each commercial business unit, which
means a document that contains the following information for the previous financial year:

Nil report

LGR s190(2)(a) information that allows an informed assessment of the unit's operations,
including a comparison with the unit's annual performance plan.

Nil Report

LGR s190(2)(b) & (c) particulars of any changes made to the unit's annual performance
plan for the previous financial year, including the impact the changes had on the unit's
financial position, operating surplus or deficit and prospects.

Nil report
LGR s190(2)(d) particulars of any directions the local government gave the unit.
Nil report

LGR s190(1)(d) details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility or
activity:
LGR s190(1)(d)(i) supplied by another local government under an agreement for

conducting a joint government activity.

Nil report

Special Rates or Charges
LGR s190(1)(d)(ii) for which the local government levied special rates or charges for the
financial year;

Nil report

Invitations to change Tenders
LGR s190(1)(e) the number of invitations to change tenders under section 228(7) of the
LGR during the financial year;
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There were nil (0) instances during the 2023 - 2024 financial year where persons who had
submitted a tender to Council were invited to change their tenders.

Registers
LGR s190(1)(f) a list of the registers kept by the local government;

The following list reflect the registers kept by the council:

e Councillor Declarations — Conflict of Interest
e Asset Register

e Delegations Register

e Correspondence Register

e Common seal Register

e Risk Register

e Complaints Register

LGR s190(1)(g) a summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local
government;

Yarrabah Shire Council did not issue special rates or charges during the reporting period
LGR s190(1)(h) the report on the internal audit for the financial year;

Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee, Chief Executive Officer and Senior
Management with the assurance that Council’s internal control systems are efficient,
effective, economically viable and risks are understood / managed.

Council’s appointed Internal Auditors are Pacifica Chartered Accountants. During the 2023 -
2024 financial year the internal audit focused on Stores and Inventory Management, QBuild
Internal Staff Productivity and Arts & Cultural Precinct Operations. The audits highlighted a
number of recommendations for improvement. These recommendations have been
referred to the councillors and directions issued to Senior Management for their attention.

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council and the Senior Management remain committed to
supporting the independent audit process and ensuring robust systems and checks are in
place to promote sound financial management and control. The team at Yarrabah Aboriginal
Shire Council also show their support by implementing the recommendations of the internal
audit.

Competitive Neutrality Complaints
LGR s190(1)(i) a summary of investigation notices given in the financial year under S49 of
the LGR for competitive neutrality complaints;

Nil report
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LGR s190(1)(j) the local government's responses in the financial year on the QCA's
recommendations on any competitive neutrality complaints under $52(3) of the LGR.

Nil report

Senior Staff Remuneration
LGA s201(1)(a) the total of all remuneration packages that are payable (in the year to
which the annual report relates) to the senior management of the local government.

The senior management, of a local government, consists of the chief executive officer and
all senior executive employees of the local government.

Total = $724,857

LGA s201(1)(b) the number of employees in senior management who are being paid each
band of remuneration. Each band of remuneration is an increment of $100,000.

There is no requirement to disclose the exact salary of any employee in senior

management separately in the annual report.

Number of senior contract employee

Package range e
within package range

$100,000 - $200,000 5
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COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT

Our Community Financial Report contains a summary and analysis of our financial
performance and position for the financial year.

This community report will focus on our two key financial statements that will provide
clarity and make it easier for readers to understand our financial management and
performance as shown in the financial statements.
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s Comprehensive Income

» How did we perform in relation to making a profit over the past year?

* What do we owe and what do we own at year end?

The performance over the past four years will be reviewed to highlight areas of change.

RESULTS

Highlights of 2023/2024
e Asset additions of $8.55 Million
e Unqualified Audit

Snapshot of the Financial Statements for Year Ended 30 June 2024

Council

$ Million
Operating Revenue 17.00
Operating Expenses 25.02
Operating Position -8.01
Capital Income 11.03
Capital Expenses 1.17
Net Result 1.84
Total Assets 181.15
Total Liabilities 10.82
Net Community Assets 170.33
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Council has finished the year ending 30 June 2024 with a $1.84 million profit. Council strives
to improve our economic base and has a commitment to increasing our own-source
revenue while decreasing non-essential expenditure.

Our long-term financial forecast provides a plan to address the challenges and demands
associated with providing economic sustainability within an uncertain future.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

This statement measures how Council has performed in relation to income and expenses
during this financial year showing the profit/loss.

Councill

2024 2023 2022 2021
Recurrent Revenue 12.9 14.1 9.0 9.8
Capital Revenue 5.5 2.5 4.4 4.3
Recurrent Income 4.1 3.7 3.6 35
Capital Income 5.5 4.2 0.5 0.7
Total Income 28.0 24.5 17.5 18.3
Recurrent Expenses 25.0 21.9 19.0 17.0
Capital Expenses 1.2 0.7 0.8 0.9
Loss on Deconsolidation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Expenses 26.2 22.6 19.8 17.9
Net Result 1.8 1.9 -2.3 0.4
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COUNCIL INCOME: WHERE DID THE MONEY COME FROM?

Levies and charges $176,936

M Rental income $2,985,094

M Sales revenue $5,638,969

m Other income $1,079,868

B Grants and subsidies - Operating

$7,122,846

B Grants and subsidies - Capital
$5,511,806

Capital income - Donated assets $0

m Capital income - Contract works
$5,518,640

The above graph shows 65% of our income this year is grant funded for various operating
and capital projects. In preceding years we had seen grant funding running at : 2023: 48%;
2022: 62%. This year, increased social Housing Upgrades, Council being contracted to
construct 3 new social houses, and the Jilara Oval & Arts Precinct upgrades saw the
percentage increasew.

In 2023-24, Council’s own-source revenue was $9.88M, 35% of the Council’s total revenue.

The own-source revenue income streams are rent collection and planned maintenance
works from QBuild.
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COUNCIL EXPENSES: WHERE WAS THE MONEY SPENT?
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1.48%

Employee benefits $6,941,205
23.46%

W Materials and services
$11,543,254

M Finance costs $388,295

Depreciation and amortisation
$6,143,880

M Capital expenses $1,173,660

26.50%

The above chart shows Councils expenses. Materials and services were $11.54M (44%) of
our total expenditure. Employee benefits were $6.94M (27%) that was closely followed by

the expense of Council’s assets depreciating $6.14M (23%).

12

10 ~

Millions

2024 2023 2022 2021

® Employee benefits Materials and services

The increase in materials and services was due to the associated increased costs of material
used in planned maintenance and Healthy Housing projects throughout the Community.
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COUNCIL ASSETS: WHAT DID WE PURCHASE AND CONSTRUCT?

In 2024, Council recorded asset additions of $8.55M. Council’s total non-current assets are
S164.5M.

The graph below shows the types of assets we purchased or built in 2024.

54

Buildings $327,723

M Houses $3,401,501

W Motor vehicles $54,545

m Office equipment $-

B Plant and equipment $-

B Other infrastructure $444,623

0.64%

Water $217,438

M Sewerage S-

m Roads and drainage $849,903

0.00%

M Right of use assets $38,971

m Work in progress $3,211,402

The majority of additions in 23-24 was social housing upgrades and new house construction.
The majority of Work in Progress at 30 June 2024 was infrastructure and the Balamba
development.
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INCOME & EXPENDITURE BY COUNCIL FUNCTION

Millions

EIncome
O Expenditure

Housing (Construction and Maintenance) is responsible for 54% ($15.1M) of Council’s total
revenue, followed by Community Services at 17% ($4.8M), Corporate Services at 17%
(S4.7M) and Transport Infrastructure at 9% ($2.6M).

Corporate services and community services income are largely made up of grants, subsidies,
contributions and donations. At this time own source revenue in these areas is an
impossibility.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Our statement of financial position measures what Council owns (assets) and what is owed
(liabilities) to relevant stakeholders at the end of the financial year. By viewing what Council
owns, reduced by what we owe shows Council’s net wealth (equity) as at 30 June 2024.

Assets 181,149,669
Liabilities 10,817,738
= Equity 170,331,931

The majority of Council’s assets are infrastructure at $164M. Our infrastructure consists of
social houses, buildings, roads, water and other assets that will require considerable
investment in the future to maintain for the community of Yarrabah.
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56
Trade and other payables at $8.11M make up the bulk of Council’s liabilities. This represents
monies owed by Council but were not due to be paid and unexpended grant funds.
THE PAST FOUR YEARS IN REVIEW - COUNCIL
The following graphs display our income streams over the past four years:
Income Streams
, 10
S 9
S 8
7
6
5
4
3
2
=
Rental Income Sales Revenue Operating - Grants Capital - Grants Capital - Income
m2021 m 2022 m 2023 m2024
» 1200 -
T
& 1,000 -
(7]
>
S 800 -
[
600 -
400 -
200 -
2021 2022 2023 2024
B Levies & Charges OOther Income

The last four years in review highlight Council’s commitment to reducing expenditure while

working to increase areas of own source revenue.
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40
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Millions
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mincome
Expenses
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2021 2022 2023 2024

(10)

(20) —

(30)

In 23-24 Council’s expenditure increased from previous years as running costs globally
continue to increase and more planned maintenance work is done. Expenditure equates to

93% of income.
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Financial Statements
LGR s183(a) the general purpose financial statement for the financial year, audited by the
auditor general

Annual Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2024
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Income

Revenue
Recurrant revenuse
Service charges
Salae revenue
Granls, subsidies, conldbulions and donations

Takal recurren reveanise

Capital revenue
Grantz, subsiiias, conlibulions and donalions
Total capifal revenue

Capial incoms

Rental income

Cithear imgome
Total income

Expenses
Recurrent expenscs
Employes banefits
Matesials and services
Finance costs
Depreciation and amarisalion

Caplial expenses
Total expenses

Ket result

Other comprebensive income

Rems that will not be reclassified te net result
Increase i assel revaluation suplus

Total ather comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The abowe slatement showld be read in conjunetion with the actompanying notes and accaunting policies
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2024 2023
Note 5 §
3a) 176,036 280,189
k) 5,835,080 4,636,130
4ia) 7,122,848 8,220,025
12,938,751 14,116,344
4{h] 5,511, 806 b
5,511,806 2,475,626
E{a} 5518640 4,234,072
5{b) 2,955,004 3022528
Bc) 1,079,668 6g8.Tai
28,034,158 24,518,362
& {6,941.205) (G438, B08)
T {11,543.254) {9.073.008)
& (388,295} (656624
12 {6, 143,880) (5.751,105)
{25,016,634) {21,919,535)
o {1.173.660) (BB EZE)
(26, 190,204) (22 B0 AST)
1,843,865 1,914,505
12 8,602,403 9,106,535
6,602,403 8,106,635
10,446,268 11,021,540
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council

Statement of Financial Statement

As at 30 June 2024

2024 2023
Note $ $
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 11,486,084 11,008,756
Trade and other receivables 11 2,055,976 2,636,657
Inventories 165,439 213,546
Contract assels 14 2,974,790 798,759
Total current assets 16,682,289 14,657,718
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 164,467,380 154,625,937
Total non-current assets 164,467,380 154,825,937
Total assets 181,149,669 189,283,655
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 2,228,236 2,498,438
Conlract liabilities 14(b} 5,850,604 4,245,543
Lease liabilities 33,951 791
Provisions 16 783,318 684,006
Tatal current liabilities 8,896,110 7,428,776
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 212,413 312,251
Provisions 16 1,709,215 1,656,965
Total non-current liabilities 1,921,628 1,969,216
Total liabilities 10,817,738 9,397,992
Net community assets 170,331,931 159,885,663
————— ]

Community equity
Asset revaluation surplus 17 113,582,452 104,880,049
Retained surplus 58,749,479 54,005,614
Total community equity 170,331,931 __ 159,885,663

The abave statement shouid be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes and accounling policies.
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Asset revaluation Retained surplus Total
surplus
Note $ § $
Balance as at 1 July 2023 104,980,049 54,905,614 158,885,663
Net result . 1,843,865 1,843,865
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 12 8,802,403 - 8,602,403
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,843,865 10,448,268
Balance as at 30 June 2024 113,582,452 5&,?4!-.42_ 170,331,931
Balance as at 1 July 2022 95873414 52,990,709 148,864,123
MNet result - 1,914,805 1,814,905
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 12 9,106,635 - 9,106 635
Total comprehensive income for the yoar 9,106,635 1,814,905 11,021,540

Balance as at 30 June 2023 104!9Wi049 gausiau 1595835!853

The above slatemeni should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and sccounting policias.
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2024
2024 2023
Note $ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 8683226 3,717,469
Payments to suppliers and employees (20,654 ,385) (14,254,025}
(11,971,159) (10.536.556)
Interest received 427177 149,457
Rental income 2,985,004 3,022,529
Recurrent grants and conlributions 6,554,334 9,220,025
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 29 (2,004,554) 1,855,455
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (8.546,106) (6.434,810)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and eguipment - 7.080
Capital grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 11,027,988 7.128,732
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 2,481,882 701,213
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 477,328 2,556,668
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 11,008,756 8,452,088
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 10 11,486,084 11,008,756
. ————

The above slatemen! should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles and accounfing policies.
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

1.4

1B

1C

Information aboul theze financial stalements

Basis of preparation

Yarrabah Abariginad Shire Coundil is consliwled under the Queansland Locs! Govermmen! Aot 20086 and is domiciled in Awslralia.

Thesa general purpose financisl statements are for the period 1 July 2023 to 20 June 2024 They afe prépaned in accordance wilh
the Loos Governeni Asl 2008 and the Local Govermman! Reguiation 20012

Council 18 & not-for-profit antity for finencial reporing pepeses and these fnancial stataments comply with Australisn Accounling
Standards and nerpretations as applicable to nol-for-profil entlies.

These financial statements hawve baen prepared wndar the historcal cost convendion excepl lor carlain currant and non-cumant
aszelz which are measured at fair value.

Mew and revised Accounting Standards adopted during the year

Yamrabah Aboriginal Shire Councll adopted all standards which became mandatorily effactive 1or annual reporting penods beginning
on 1 July 2023, none of the standands had a8 material imgact on reported positien. perfermance and cash fows, The adoplion of the
riniginng 1o AASE 104 Presentation of Financial Stalements resulbed in disciosure of material accounting policy infarmation cnly
rather than significand accounting policies, This means thel accounling policy information (s disclogsed only iF it ralates 1o matarial
transacilons, other avanls or conditions ard:

a) Council has changed accounding policy dusing the reporting perod end this chenge resulted in a matarial change 1o the
infprmation in the fnancial stademaents.

b} Councll chose {or was mandated to use} the accounting poficy from one or mone oplions permilied by Ausiralian Accounting
Standards

o) the sccounting policy was developed in accordance with AASE 108 Accounting Pollcies, Changes in Accounling Estimates and
Emaes i lhe absence of an Australlan Accounting Siandard that specifically applies

Yy ther accouniing policy relve fo an area ke which a Cowncil is required to make significant judgements ar s&5wmplions in apglying
Bn seoounding palicy, and the Councll discloses (hose judgements or assumplions in the financlal slalements.

i) e accourling reguired for them is complex and users of the anlity's financial statements would otheryise nol understand those
material ransactions, athar evanls ar condilions

Standards lmsued by the AASH not yet effective

The AASE has msuwed Australian Accounting Standards and Interprataiions which are nol elfeciive 2l 30 June 2024, these
slandards hawve nol been adopted by Councl and will be incleded In the financial statemants on their clective dabe. Where Bw
standard is expected 1o have o significant impact for Councll then funther informaton has been provided in this note.

The following list identifies the new Australian Accouniing Standands thal were issued but nel yet effective at the time of preparing
thess financial statements that could be apphicabls to Council
Effective for NFP annual
rapert periods baginning
o of after:

AASE M2 01 Amendments to Ausiralian Accownding Slandards - Classification of Liabdfies a6 1 Jarary 2024
Crarent or Men-Cuwrrent and associsled slandards (amended by AASE 2021-6 and AASE H)22-G
Amendments by Ausirakan Accounting Standards - Noa-current Lisbiities with Covenants §

ASE 2022-10 Amendmenis to Ausiralan Accounking Standards - Fair Yalue Measurement af Nan 1 JanuEry 2024
Financial Assele of Moi-for-Profit Public Sector Endllies
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont.)
For the year ended 30 June 2024

i.D

1E

1.F

1.G

1H

Infermation about these financial statements (continued)

Estimates and judgements

Councils make a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial stalements. These are based on
the best information avaiable to Council at the time, however due to lhe passage of time, these assumptions may change and
tharefore the recorded balances may not reflect the final outcomes. The significant judgements, estimales and assumplions relate
to the following items and specific information is provided in tha relevant note:

Revenue recognilion - Note 3 and 4

Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Notes 12 and 12
Provisions - Note 16

Contingent liabilities - Note 18

Financial instruments - Note 11

Rounding and comparatives

The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presenlstion curency and rounds lo the nearest dollar.

Comparative information is generally restated for reclassifications, emors and changes n accounting policies unless permitted
otharwise by transition rules in a new Accaunting Standard. Comparative information is prepared on the same basis as prior year,

Leases

Leases of property under which the Council as lessor transfers substantially all the risks and benafits incidental 1o the ownership of
the asset, but not the legal cwnership, are classified as finance leases. Council currently has no finance leases. Other leases,
where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are classified as operating leasas.

Community housing

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council does not hold any investment property, however does provide soclal housing as a semvice fo
community mambers. As the Council area is situated on Deed of Grant in Trust {DOGIT) there is a prohibition on sale of any land
within the area designated under DOGIT as mentioned in Note 12. {a).

Taxation

Income of local authorilies and public authorities is exempt from Commonwsalth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods
and Services Tax ('GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable lo the ATO is shown as an assel or liabflity

respectively,

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2(a)

Analysis of Results by Function
Components of council functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2{b) are as follows:

CEQ and governance

The objective of this funclion is for Council to be open, accountable, transparent and deliver value for money commumnitly oulcomes.
This includes strategic and operational planning, risk management, legal and administrative support. The Mayor, Councillors, and
Chief Executive Officer are included in CEQ and govermance,

Corporate services

Corporate services provides professional fingnce and information services across all of Council. This function includes imennal audit,
budget support, financial accounting, the taxation unil, markeling and communication and information lechnology services, The goal
of this function is to provide accurate, timely and appropriate information to support sound decision making and meet statulory
requirements.

Community services

The goal of community services is 1o ensure Yarrabah is a healthy, vibranl, contemposary and connected community. This function
provides well managed and maintained community facilities, and ensures the effective delivery of cullure, arts, welfare, sport and
recreational services.

Housing
The objective of the housing funclion is to provide serviceable social housing to community members, This includes construction,

repairs and maintenance and tenancy management,

Transport infrastruclure
The abjeclive of the transport infrastructure program s to ensure the community is serviced by & quality and effective road network.

This function provides and maintains roads and drainage,

Water infrastructure
The goal of the water program Is to suppor! a healthy, safe community through sustainable water services, This function ncludes all
water supply senvices.

Sewerage and waste
This function is to protect and support olr communily and natural envirenment by sustainably managing refuse and sewerage
infrastruciure, This funclion provides refuse collection and disposal services and sewerage senvices,

Page |
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

3 Rgven e

Service levies are recognised as revenue at the beginning of the levy period to which they relala.

2024 2023

{8}  Service charges
Service levies 176,936 260,189

176,936 260,189

{b} Sales revenue

Sale of goods revenue is recognised at the poinl in time that the customer obtaing control of the goods, generally at delivery.
Revenuve from services |8 recogrised when the serice ks rendered.

Council generates revenues from a number of services including child care, school bus run, swimming pool, equipment and facility
hire and conlracts for road and eathworks. Recurment revenue from housing confracts and recoverable works generally comprises
a receupment of malerial costs together with an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Revenue s measured al the
fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to thal sctivity. Whesa consideration |z received for the service in
advarice it is incluged in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed

2024 2023
L] ]
Rendering of services
Bius: run revenue 67,163 4,705
Child care feas 43,522 87,650
Conlract works revenue 5,364 660 4,313,648
Other sales of services 62, 666 00,402

5,528,040 4,556,605

Sale of goods

Art and crafl museum 110,929 79,435

110,829 78,435

Total sales revenue 5,638,060 4,636,130
.

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Grant income under AASB 15
Whare grant income arises from an agresment which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations then

the revenue s recognised when contral of each performance obligation is safisfied,

Parfarmance chigations vary in mach agresment bul indude events, disability support services, efc. Faymeant terms vary depending
on the werms of the grant. cash 3 received upfront for some grams and on the achievement of cerain payment mileslones for

olhers,

Each performance obligation is considerad to ensure that the revenus recognilion reflects the transfer of contral and within grant
agreoments, there may be some performance obligations where conirel transfers at a point in lime and olhers which have
continuous transfer of controd over the dife of the coniract,

Where control is transferred over lime, revenue is recognised using elther costs or time Incurred
Grant income under AASE 1058

Where Council receives an asset for significantly balow fair value, the asset is recognised at fair value, related Bability (or equity
items) are recorded and income then is recagnised for any remaining asset valea at the time that the asset is received,
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4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and danations (Centinuad)

Capital granis

WWhere Councl meceives funding under an enforoeable contracl 1o acquire oF conelnict & apecified Rem al prapemy. pland and
equipmen! which wil ba under Comcl's coninal on completion, mevenue & recognised as and ahen e obligation o conslruct ar
purchase s compleiec.

For conginuchion projecie, thie 1B ganerslly &5 1he conslniclion prograsses in accordanoe with coests incurned.

Daansxlions: and coninbulicng

Wingre asseds am domasad or purchased bar significanlly bekve Fair vales, te revenue i eeognised whon the sse) B apquired and
condralied by the Councl

Banatians and contrbulions are gersrally recogrised on receipl of the &ssal aincs thers are no anforcealie perlomands

obligatians

2024 2023

5 §
{2} Opweralional

Ganeral punpasa granls 4 T4, 627 T.038,547
Szate govamment subsdies and grants 2 145,748 1.748.216
Commanweakh pavernmenl subsidies and grants a2 ary 166,283
Other grenl providers 40,183 205,278

7122846 G220, 025

—_———

In June 2023 Council recsived 52,547,200, egueating to 100% of the 2023-24 Commonwaath Fimancial Assislance Grand
allacation. As these grants are considered unlied granls, Bey wene recogrisaed upon raceipls in the H023-33 financial year. In tha
202324 financial year, Couneil received only 3105, 723 under the Commomeesiih Financial Assistanca Granl, and as such, there Is
a decrease in Comncil revenue.

()  Capital
Siate government subeidies and grants 5,611,508 2,478,626
5,511,805 2476 676

{cl  Timing of revenue recognition for gramts, subsidies, contributions and denalians

2004 2023

Revenue Fevenue Rewenmis Rewenus
recognised at recognisod recognised al  recognised

& proind &0 aver time @ point in ot over time

tima
¥ L) § 5

Granls, subsdies, contribusians and donations 7,089,155 5,845 447 §,440, 048 3,247 803

& 5045 207 8,420 048 3,247 B3
5 Caphal and otler Moo
2024 20E3
Mol 5 5

ja) Capitalincome

Conirac] works Income 5,516,640 4, 254 072
5.5 18,640 4 0T
——

Contracted bulding of new social houges 1o e vakie of 35 M wes performaed by Councll in 3033-3H0104.

[b] Rental nooms
Frapedty nenta 2, 985084 3,022,528

2. 085 004 3,007 53

Rerigl income from communily bosing Is reccgnisad as income on & periodic straighl Bre barkis o the lenancy bam.
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5 Capital and other Incoma [Continwed)
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2024 2023
3 ]
(e} Dihes income
Irilresst received El=1 b 140,457
e Incame B2 Bt 518,334
1,074, EGH akh, i
B Emaployer benefits
Tatal staf wages and saliares 5438 Hla BOEE, S0
Coundllorg’ remunaralion 320,080 18,0253
Fringn barafil lax 38,056 39,057
Walkeover 132633 a7 a1
Annupl, Sk and kng senicd lpav cmiiements G06 418 SHE 202
Supsrannualion 19 E08, 481 541,318
Wioakveiir 26546 25818
7. 180,100 6672030
Lass: Canllalised amployes axpanses {238,505) [234.041)
8,541,105 6,430, FOR
Councilor semuneralion represends aaary, and other allowances paid In respact of carrying oul thelr dulies
Toial Councl emplryess al e reporing data; 024 Fikal
Mo, Ho,
Electad mambars 5 8
Administraton staff a3 2
Dapol and odldosrs slall B3 ]
Tolal dull lima equivalent employess 113 105
T Materials and services
2024 2023
§ §
Al ardices 152,234 150,661
Communications ane [T 268,720 288,480
Conifasineg Br3,EF2 arrore
Canatiors paic 1,000 00
Faed 33,397 45 6514
Hira ol equspmanl TET BET 379,808
Insurance 1.1T2.260 1,446,792
Wanarale god oparaling 3208 TEG 1,434 ka2
Mosor vahicle axpensas 188874 157573
Poweur 275148 300,954
Regairs and meaintanansa 5002128 4, 045008
Subscriplions and registragons 130,144 1373568
Traval and sccommodation 51,127 34,338
Cner matarals and seraces 413,014 264 BTT
9,073,008

11,648,254
S ee—

* Total audil lees quoted by the Ousensiand Audl Ofcs relaling to the 2023-24 fnancial stalemants ane §77.655 (2023 574,000}

] Finance cosis

Bark charges 12832 5,863
Imaainment af receivahles 11 3T AR 619,830
Larcifi¥ provision sxpenss - Unainding of the discound rale 12 2T AN 278

SHEZ0S [l L]
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10

Capitalexpenses

Page |

2024 2023
3 5
Prowision for restoration of land
Rereasurement of refuse restoration provision 14 38,303 37,391
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Camying walue of disposed property, plant and eguipment 12 1,135.357 433,521
Less proceeds from sale of property, plant and egquiprmsent (7,000
Lozs on disposal of propery. plant and equipment 1,135,337 46,431
1,173,560 83,812
Total capital income | (2xpenses)
Zash and cash eguivalznts
2024 2023
3 3
Cash st bank and on hand 2,330,013 4,606,286
Term deposits 5855130 6,392,470
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 11,486,084 11,008,736

Lonnedl is exposed to credit sk through its investrents in the OTC Cash Fund and QTS Working Capital Facility. The OTC Cash
Fund is an asset mansgement partfolio imesting in 3 wide ranps of high credit rated counterparies. Deposits with the QTS Cash
Fund are capital guarant==d. YWorking Capital Facility deposits hawe a duration of one day and all imvestments are required fo hawes
a3 minimurn credit rating of "A-", the Bkelihcod of the counterpanty not having capscity to meet its financial commitrmants is ow.

Cash and cash equivalents 11,486,084 11,008,756
Less: Externally imposed restrictions on cash (5, 104 B6T) (7648 56T
Unrestrictzd cazh 381,222 3,358 380

Extemnally imposed expenditure restrictions st the reporting dste relste to the following cash assets:

Unspent government grants and subsidies 5,104,862 7,649 867

Totsl unspent restricted cash 3,104 862 7,640 BT

Cach and deposits ai call are held inthe Commomwealth Bank of Australia and with QTS innormal term deposits and business
cheque accounis.




Page |

Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2023 - 2024
Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024
11 Trade and other receivables
Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off in the same period are recognised as
finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Debtors are grouped into different categories based on their nature of operations. Community
service charges related to water, sewerage and waste. No interestis charged on debtors. Thereis a
concentration of credit risk for community service charges and housing rent collection due to its
customer base which is individuals in the community. The Council does not make loans to
community residents.
2024 2023
$ $
Current
Community service charges 584,431 592,089
Commercial leases 121,775 77,986
Day care centre fees 140, 158 109,325
Housing rental 2,947,059 3,621,409
Other trade and sundry debtors 2,200,551 523,144
Recoverable works 479 479
5,994,453 4,924,432
Less: loss allowance -4,286,030 -4,004,256
1,708,423 920,176
Receivables {Non-Financial Instruments)
Accrued revenue 14,643 409,314
GST recoverable 239,937 264,050
Prepayments 92,973 1,043,117
347,553 1,716,481
Total current receivables 2 055976 2,636,657

Council applies normal business credit protection procedures prior to providing goods or services to minimise

creditrisk.

Movement in accumulated impairment losses is as follows:

Opening balanceat 1 July 4,004,256 3,384,426
Impairment Debts written off during the year -65,858
Additional impairments recognised 8 347,632 619,830
Closing Balance at 30 June 4,286,030 4,004,256
The following represents an analysis of the age of the Council's financial assets thatare either fully
performing, past due or impaired:
Fully performing 1,886,268 228,597
Past due Less than 30 days 21,355 19,627
Past due 31-60 days 29,348 77,452
More than 90 days 4,057,482 4,598,756
Total gross carrying amount 5,994,453 4,924,432
Loss allowance -4,286,030 -4,004,256
1,708,423 920,176

After reviewing macroeconomic conditions, Council reached the conclusion that forwards looking

conditions indicated no

foreseeable expected deviations from historically calculated ratios, thus no forward looking adjustments were

made
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11 Trade and cther recslvables (continuad)

Expechad crekf lnss assessman

- 2024
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Thia Councl uses an Alltwanoa matny o maasone he axpecied credil Insses of rade eceivables from indiddual customers, which

COmprse B very lasge nmber of small balances

Loss rates are calculatad using & ‘rol rabe” mathad pased on the probabifity of a receivable prograssing (hrough successe skages

gl dalinquancy i wrils-cil

2024 Aging Closing Histesical  Loss ghven Lifetime
balance at  probability of difaul mypactad
I0M06I2024 derfau it crofit loss
3 e o §
[Recoverabls Works [Fii. [ - | oo 0.0% -]
{Cammunity service chamges 131 days (20412}  15.0% 000 130620
31-60 daya 2019 30.0% 100 4005
150 days = Bl 0% 0.0 -
B days 804,037 2.0 0% LT ]
{Talal nid, 434 540,876
[Commrcial lases 1-30 diaya JE,151 5.0 00 0 6,729
180 days 10,281 B0.0%% 1010 0% 5,141
51-00 davs 17,178 BOL 0% 100.0% 13,7427
= days 51,806 G0 0% 1000% &0 715
Specific deblors® 14.'!'.9_5-0 0.0% 0.0% =
Todal 265 536 71,327
[Cayeane cantre lees 1-30 days 1,326 15.0% 10, Crde 198 |
3160 days 2,852 50.0% 100 0% 1476
E1-90 days ?.ﬁ 80.0% )% 5,156
|90+ days 124,373 91,0 H00.0% 111,836
|Talal 116,358 148,787
[Fousing ronial 1-30 days B35 | 15.0% 100 0% g
Fi-80 days 101 50.0% 10005 [
T-50 days TiTh | B0 100 0% 221 |
e darys 1.910.8m B0 05 1000% 31820
Tedal 3.914.314 1,522,007
IEHth trade ard sundry debilors 1-30 days 5817 T.0% A0 414
3160 days 1,655 16045 100, 0% 248
B1-90 days 7060  24.0% 100, 1,743 |
20+ days 591,508 32.0% NEEL D 28,498
Specific deblors® 1,129,244 0.0% 0.0% -
Tatal 1,236,133 31,823
*Spaciic deblors [Fovernman! gnlitias) which mo daful i expecied
347632

Credil loss mavements 8 reponing dale
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11 Trade and other receivables (continued]

The ioliowing table provides indormation aboul the eeposure o cradll isk and expected losses o rade receivables from individusl
cuslomers &= al 37 June 2073

2023 Aging Closing Historical  Loss given Lifertime
bakance at probakbility of — default axpected
N0 aafault credit loss
L] - £ ]
|Hm*ﬂ:||u Works |-I~|.|'.I'I. | 470 | 0.0%, | 0.0 J - |
E{lm.rnunll:,- sEMvica changas 13 days 138,21 :'Ju 15.0% 100.0% I:EE
31-60 days 1,308 50.0% 100 e [0
|51 -0 days - 50.0% 00 -
(504 days 823,504 .0 100 0% S0, HS
ITuI.:II el ] 561,787
[Commercial lmazes 1-30 doys EXC T00.0% [FH
=0 days &,327 50.0% 10005 4,164
B1-80 days 33 | e0.0% 100.0% FIE
B+ days fifs 40 B0.0% 1000 59,256
Total 77,086 B2, 213
[Oaycare centre fees 1-30 days B,158 15.0% 100.0% L]
36l days 4,410 S0.0% 0O 2,03
E1-90 days 55,263 B0 AR, 52,40
50+ days 33404 90.0% 00.0% 0,145
[Fotat 109,325 BE 482
[Houzing rants 130 days 1,700 16.0% 080 0% 255
31-640) days 3,833 S0.0% 1060 0% I,[ﬁ
|G1-50 days 1,788 B0.0% 10005 1,430
| days 3614,238 a0.0% I 3,252,858
[Ttz 3621 400 3, 256, 361
[Giiher Frade and suncry Geblors 1-30 days 12482 | T0% | 100.0% B4
60 days L I_Eﬂ ]E.'ll‘?ﬁ 1HLD5S 177
ﬂ:ﬂl:l doys 4,808 2% 100 0% 1,178
A0+ deys 108, 589 T2 0% 10004 34,2
Soecific dakiars® aay B8 D0%s 0.0F -
Total 523,144 35,434

"Epecilic doblovs (G overmmen! eimiies) witich oo dafaudl is expectad

Cradit loss movemonis at reporting dabe 618,830
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

i}

{bj

(=h

Property, plard and aquipment {Sonbinuad)

Recopnitiomn

Plant el aqulpmarng wilh @ bl valos of lie than 35,000, and inksbusure gl housds and fuildings with o (ofal valun of e
fhian 510,000 ana beabed as an sponst in the year of soquisBios. A alher Heme of property, plarl and equp=en| are caplalesd

Lasd uadas mdi
Land ursder the cond nebane avthn the Cooresl mw bt hae besr deisdizated and opened i pulhe wee onder e Catg ded T804 o

i Landd Thvie Aci 708 b nog comssodiad by Coencll et |5 coninelied by Lhe Slabo pursuard o the sedewant legistation. Therefons s
land i= nol pecogn eed In [hess hanckl sisEments

DCitadl 0f Grani in Tiust and
The Coencil b lotaksd om land assigned bo L under a Deed ol Seanl in Trosi (DO ] under Saction M| of e Land Act THH, K

compriees an arep of ppprosieainly 15 800 hacam

The lara ic adminksiored by o Coparimont of Maluepl Begcarces and bnes andl the Councll has redimcted use ol s Bnd e e
el off shien I bR, Tha DOGIT fand has red bean taken up mihe Cowmoils asseis a8 R cannot be rekably measured

Eamnur mmeer!

Fraperty, plani and cquipsern assets are nlaly moorded o8 cosl. Subseguently, each chss of property, plant and eguidmen &
sintnd st ot or fer valys lees, whees applcsbis, @y sccusolstsd dagreaciatin and aceumula el mpaimmend ke

apipd weork: in proareey
Tha cost ol peoparty, pland and equipran] teing constrocied by e Councll irciydes e cost of percka isd sanise, materisss, dines
likor and an apprapiale propedion of labow cyarhaads

Doprecaton

Ll and imad Foomaiions am rnol deprociabed 2= e gasels hayve unbimised el Fees, Work in progeess s nol deprecisied on [he
hasin thal the s i nol seady or wis

Depmciation, whers applicable, (5 caloulated o o skaighiling basks such ol Bo oosi of o @ssel b5 moognised progressaesly ower
s ssimated urehd Me o Councll. Menagament Baless 1531 the siragh-ine Besis sppeoprisie’y mlacis Pa pamam ol consuamgion
o all Councl assals

Any axgendlies thel inciapses e fgicaly aissesed Capasily o safvide goleial of An A5 B capiaised and the row deprociable
amoun is depreciaiod ovar e remaking usoid e of he assel o the Covrcl

¥ judgamens and osfimabes:

anageimenl revisws s eslerle of B usebal ives of deprecisble seseta Al each mpivg data, based on the exgecied wilitg of )

SRS
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
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12

LA

CH

Propery, plart and aquipment [Continued)

Frgoirme

An Gmpsnmdl 0SS 18 MaONSsd 3% an aEpEnsE N e Sisemenl ol Compeerensies moome. wniees [he sxsal s e 8l 8
servalves] amound, When the assel b messunsd al s revalus) amoan], P opalimenl oes i3 ollee? apainal he as3el nevalsalizn

el of tho relevanl class o tha oefen] Jvaiiabia.

Whars an impsmes lois filkegiesihy feaiied, (e CRTTEG &bl ol NG aeseT & ncreasnd % e resisnd aslimale ol Is
recovemble amound, Bul =0 that the hoeassd camying amousd does nob eecesd e amyng a=cunt Thel weuld Feve Bean
dotmrminid had no mparmand bes b racegeiosd i i il bh poasr peers. A rovomal of o imsarsam D B reoognised as
Imooma wnkees Tho acsed Is caried al o roealusd amount, in wiskch casa e ravansal of the impeiseen o e Seakad Al @ MoaEion
HaprpiE

Walumion

Hegy judipeime ils aredd S limaies:
Somie of the Councils assols and lebi Hes are measered & fai value for fnandal mporing pupoese

I~ mstimaiing tha fair salue of a7 asssi ora lahbly. the Comcl yses markel-Giseraable dats 1o Se sden! (e salaiie and il
NEULE B8 NRCREEATY

Coumal oneidas the cirpng amaen of lie prepaity, plisl s agupsianm o Be aenusl Baih comgand o far walun and makes
ROUEITEE whise MEsE ae maendaly diferen This 58 achined by ongadice Indapendosnl, professoraly qualtbod vakes 10
coleming the fak valus k sech clhass of pogerdy, plan] Al agel peand sasals al sl chil gefy v ypeads. Th prosass vk
this wiliedy pAECally Sighling o nd pPesonindve sempa of Cond 35583 acnss o) aasl clessas and making Besr o 3esEssmerie
tal s crmadibon ol e mrasoali Al 158 b o gt clicn

In b indersning weas, managerent cogage Independent, prolessionally qualled vales o pardovm @ “desking® vakmabon &
desliag vakglon ifreclvie mansgamenl Bheaading upsaled ez 12 e vallar sgading aaditons, dokilons and changes in
assurnpiions such as usola B residual vofue and condiion rmEng. The vakmr then determenes sulabie idices wisich sre appled ©
wack ol thess gienl tlaases

On revaksaiion, oocumulaisd depreclaton i restaled propordonately wih the change in the carping amouck of tha sl wnd any
changi in thi safimele o nemsfng vl Bk

Daleibi o valuais and maltods of veluaisns e 2 soiasad Inkoie 13
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14 Contract balances

2024 23
] $
(a) Coniract assots 28747590 T84, 7EG

(b} Contract liabilities
Current contract ishiilies & BB B0 4,245 643
LT 4 245 543
—_—_—

Funos received upfronl bo conslucl Councll canlrolled asaels 672672 3,853,267
Han-capital gerformance chigalions not wet satisfied 178,032 S 2E
& BE0 G0 q, 248 543

Revanus recognised thel was ncludad Inihe condrecd labilly batance at the begisning of the yaar
Funds to constrsct ar acgure Council controlied 1,105,508 2P AR

Mor-capilal parfoemance abligations 55,114 27,400
1,372,014 2,300,622
e

Salichwcsion of conlract listlilies
The conirasl labdiles In redatian ko caplal grams relate 1o funding recebeed price 1o the work baing parlommed sinde revenoe Is
racogniaed as Councll corsiriects the assels, Councl expecis 1o recognise the comirasl liability a8 incama in the nexl 1-2 waers,

(e} Skgnificant changes in contract balances

Elgru‘ilmn! maversents in contrad asseals and conlracl Rebiities thal have ocousTRd duing tha year wene cue B e 'Ehﬂ-l'l'dﬂ‘ in the fiming
of the work, rnpaimedt of @ conlracl assel and sQniicanl Mmonies racaived in podvancs

15 Trade snd othar payables

Trade credilors ave recogaised upan receipl of lhe goods of sardces ordarad and are measured at the Sgreed puithassLontiat] pte
net af appicable discounts olher than condingenl discourts, Amounts owing ame wsacured and are generafly Sedibed an 30 day tems.

Unearnad revenes reiafes o the waste levy subsidy payments recained i advanca. The cument poman relates to the amounl recaived
fior the 20@24-26 financial yoar with the remaining amaount received far the financial years, J25-26 and 202627 shoen as @ nan-currant

limbalthy.
2024 2023
§ 3
Currant
Crediiors Brd soonuals 17453497 2188 525
Chidcara fors paid in aovance T ¥.T75
GET payabie 251 BE3 92,944
Hiousing rentas paid in advance B30 Nk
Oiher debtors padd in advance M. 785 1 463
Ureaaimead v B 98 838 49,834
2,228 205 FE ]
e
Hon-curremnt
Uneagrmed ravenue 212 418 IEIH

12413 EIFFL]]
— ]
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18  Provisions

Anrepl Legrs
A lakdlity Tor annual lpsve |5 recognised, As Cowncll doss not hawe an uncongilicnal eight to defer this lability bayend 12 months annusl
cave Is passifed a& a cumant babiity. This labilty rapresents an accrued sxpenas and is repodled B 8 provision

Long sefics [eand
A fgniity for long sarvice kave 5 maasuned as tha presen! value of the estimated fours cash cutfiows (o e made N respacl of servicas

provided by employess up i the repoding date, Tha valse of the Pabiity i calculated using cumant pey rates and projeciad Tiura
Increases n lhose rates and inchades related emploves on-costs, The estmetas are sdjusted for the probsiiity of the amployes
remaining im tha Councll's employmant or other aascciabed employmant which would rasull in the Councll baing required 1o maet tha
kznlity. Adpsiments arg than made o @llow for the proporion of the benallt aamed 1o date, and the sl s discountsd 1o presant
walue The interest mias abaching to Commonwaalth Govarmmant guaranieed securities 8l the reporling date ara used io discount e
eslimated fulure cash outiows fo thair presant valus,

WWhere ampioyess have mel the prarequigite k2ngth of gervice and Councll does nol have an unconditienal nghl 1o celer this Fabiily
bayond 12 months long samvica leave i classilied a3 a cument iabilty. Olhanwisa il is claasilied a8 nan-curment

Fealues dump rasboralion
A provision is made for the cost of rastoring the relese dump whers [t probable the Gouncll wil be labla, o medquined, o do dhis when
the v of the faciily is completa

Thi provislon lor raluse restorstion s calculabed as the prasent value of Brilicipabed filure cosle associaled wilh the closure of 1he dump
shas, decondaminalion and monioring of historcal resicues and keaching on these sites. The caloulation of his provision eguies
asalmplions such s appicalion of anvironmanial legeation. aile closure dabas, available bechnohegies and enginesing cosl aslimales
Thaaa uncafalnies may resullin iune actual expendilure dillering Inam amounts curently provided. Becavas of (he kang-term nabun of
the llablity, tha masl significeni uncerisinty In eslimaiing the proviion iz fha cosls thal will be Incumed. The provigion recogrised for
dump sibas ks reviewed al leest anmuslly ard vpdated based om the lacls and ciroumsiancas available sl the time. Management
estmatos fhat the she wil closa in 2068 and thal the restoralion will ocour progressively over the subsequant lour year. The Gurmenl
Ermvronimsanial Auhority regquires @ Sile Developmant Plam o be submiied avery e yean unlil a Posl Cosure Care Fian bas bean
Implamamiag

A3 e valeae dump i on DOGIT land which he Coundl 28 rusbes, e prosision lar resloraiion & rested g on asselin e pear e
proy i o lipl recogniged, Chamges in ihe provigion are resled ag &n eaxpenss of indome

The pregani value of The eslimaved cosl of restoring the refuse deposal site 10 a useable siste 31 the end of its uselw Ble. The projecied
co&Lis 51485821 and b coslis expacied D be incured in 2072 aller closing e sile in 2088 and allcwing a period for salllameanl

2024 2023

3 ]
Currant
Annua laae arET? 27.ea7
Laong service keave A0, 742 356,119

THEIE a4, 108

Naomn-ourrant
Leng senica beave 10110 BT 154
Aefuse rasloration 1,508,114 1,569.811

1, 708215 1656965
Detais of mowvements in non-employee benefil provsions:
Rastoration of refuse dump
Baiance 5 heginning of financial year 1,568,811 1,532,420
Increasa in pravision dus o wrsinding of discound 3,303 373
Balance at @nd of Foancial waar 1,608,714 1.889.811
Assat revalustion surplus

2024 Z0Z3

& §
The choging bakance of the revalistion surplus compriges fhe Tollowing
Euildings 15,696,507 13.818.079
Houses 45,804,403 50,767 801
Diar slruchanes TES,ES] 491,288
Road & drainage nehwori 4,772,186 & 411,844
Water 5,062,681 5,727,831
SEWRrADA 20,551,222 18,773,533

112 502 A53 10, 580 D26
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
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18  Comtingant liabliftias

18

Dietais and estimabes ol maximem amourts of confrgenl liabililles e as folows

Local Gowernmont Mutial

The Councll 5 @ membsr of the iccal gavernmerd malual labdily sellinsurancs pool, LEM Queanslard, In ihe avenl of the poof baing
walred up o i s unable i mest is debts as ihey Rl dus, e s deed and rules prowide that any ectumulsied deficil will be mot by
the indivigusal pool mesmbers in fie same proporlion as their contribulion @ b ke lotal pecl contibutions In respect to ary year that a

gafich arises.

As at 30 June 2024 e Loca! Govemment Mutual fingncial ststements reponed an accumulated sunplus and i s ned anlicipated a
Vg NGy will anse

Local Government Workcars

The Council is a membes of ke Quesnsland local govemmenl woakers compensalion self-insurance scheme, Local Gavernmen
‘Workcare. Under this scherne the Counci s provided an irdemaily owards 8 bark guarantes o cover bad debls which may reman
showd the selfdnsurancs fcence be canceled and there were inaufficent funds avallable to cover cuistanding liabdilies. Omiy the
Cunensland Governmend's workens' compenesalion autharily may call on any part of the gueraniee should the abave circumstances
anse. The Courcl’s madmum exposure b e bank guardnies is 5196726,

Supsranmuation

Gounell comdbutes 1o the LGIAsuper Regional Defined Senafils Fuad (e scheme), ab the rabe of 12% [20E3:12%) for each permanant
employne who is a defired bareft member. Ths raie s o8 ia acoondamcs with the LGAsupar tnusl dead and may be varied an e
actvica of &n eeheany, The Regianal Defined Banefits Furd (s & complying suparannualion scheme for the purposa of she Commomaealth
Superannuation bdusiey {Supemvisian] legislation and is alss gavemed by D Local Governmant Aot 2008 The schama i managed by
the LG Asmaar rustas as irustsa fof LGIAsuper rading as Baghisr Supar.

The schema & & definad benefit plan, however Coancil is not abke 16 @scoum for il & a defined benefll plan I accordance with
A45R119 because LOIAsUper I8 unable e acoount for iis propariionate share of the defined benefil abligalien, plan sesels ant casls

any amount by which the scheme |5 over or under funded may affect fulure benefits and resull in & changs o the conlribution mia, bul
T o0 Easbn Feboghiged 8% an aseat of ity of the Council.

Technicaly Council can be lable 1o the scheme for a portien of another |ecsl governmants” cbiigatlons should that local goeemment be
unakile o mest hem Hewever e sk of this oscurfing is exremely iow and in accordance wilh she LG Asuper nest deed charges o
oouncil's obfigations will anly be made on the advics of an actuary

Th ksl campleled acluanal assessment of (e schoma was underakan as at 1 July 2021, The actoary indicated thal "1 fhe valualion
dalie of 1 Jube 3021, the nel a538ls af the achams axcasdad the wesled banefts and the scheme was in a Salishactony inshcial posilion

a5 al the valualion dabe. " The Coundl is mal seane of amvihing tha? kas happened since that ime that indicates Lhe assats of the scheme
are nod sulficien] to mesd e vesbad bepafils, a9 ol the reporting dale

Mo changes heve baan made o prescribed emplover conirbutions which reman al 12% (2023 12%) of employes asseis and them: are
o knoen requiremends o change ihe rate of conlnbutions,

The nest inennial actuanial review is not dee wnlil 1 July 2025
The mosl sigrifcan! deks [kal may resut n Brighter Ssuper increasing the condibulion r&te, on the advice ol Ihe aHuary, anm:

Invesamand risk - The rigk that the scheme's invessment returs will be lower than assumed and add®onal cemirbalions ae nesded i
furd the shartlal

Salary growih nisk « The risk thal wagas or salames will fse more rapidly kan aasumed, inchaasing vasiad baneins o be Tunded.

med 2023
5 L)
Superanruation contibutliors made io the Regianal Defined Benefl: a580,153 51,535
Cmer superanrnuaon contribulions W oher 118,104 BB.783
Total superannualion conlibutions pad by Council Tor emplayass b Gl 461 ey el 1]

Page |
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20 Dperating lease incame

21

22

FE

Whene Councd retaing the ricks and rewands relaling 1o 8 heace, he bbage B cassfed o5 an oparaiing leagses.

The: minimuen lease receinls anising am aperaling leases ane as follows

Page |

Mal ler han ane yoar 3577 332 487
QO 1o five yeans V&G, &7 0 F54 146
Later than fva yaars - LAl A0G

1,134,661 1,508,995
Trust funids
Trusi funds held for culside parties

2024 2023

¥ ]

Manies collected or beld on behalf of olher enlities yel o be paid oul 1o or on behal of those 140310 143,360

enlities

L 1 A L

Thiz Council perfonms anly a cusiodial robe in respect of these manies

I aceordance wilh the Local Governmenl Aol 2008 and Local Gevernmenl Ragulalion 2012, a separate rual bank accound ared aeparale
aocounling recosds are mairlgingd kv funde held on babad of pulside parlies Funds Rald @ he iusl a6eount on Dahall ol culside
parlies inchude relention fees, unclaimed monkes (&g wages] paid into the rus! accour by the Council and lease lees Council has
recived as lusies. The Council performs only a custodian role in iespect of majorily of thess monies and manbes hal cannol be usad

Foi Colndl purp L dare nal ideed ravenue s brought 1o accowil in the Rnancal slatemants.

Reconciliation of nel resull for e year 1o nel cash inflow (autlow) iroem operating activities

2024 2023
i 3
Net rasult 1,843, BE5 1,014,005
Mon-cash ltams:
Crepraciaton and amanisstion 6,143,860 E.T51,105
Arnpelisalion of rafuss rasicration 2r.an AN
Chargafrevessal) of loee silowancs 34T, 632 &1B.830
5,514,343 &, 331, FEG
lveating and development sclivies (non-cash). o
Mel (prafit)iass on dispasal of non-curerd AEses 1,135 357 45 419
Capital grants and canlribuions {11,030, 444) 8, 710,648]
19,85, DEEH {6,064, 767 |
Changes in apaialing assets and Rabibmes
[Incroase Mdecrease in recovablos T HBE 9T 1,508,824
[Increasa Bdecragsa in invenioties 43108 (53.998)
Ineraapaidecnaasn) 10 payebles (2. CHELRER) 12ETS
[neraasesidacraasas in cosviract assals {464.269) [208 802)
Increasaldecreasa) i comract liabdilien ralatimg O Gparalin 114,213 108447
InCragsaidecragsa) in provigions 151 553 146 176
Fereasaldecreasa) in other Eabilifes . 12,107
Inereasaidecreasa) in leass Fabillies 33,180 {18,705}
a7a BT {383, 585]
1,855455

Mal eash infice fom aperaling aolivilies iE.ED-'I-.ES'Ii

Events afer the raparting pericd

There has rat been any evenl that cooured afier the end of (he reporing penicd that has significantly affocied, or may sigrificanly

atfec, the curant or hriure fnancial resuks of the Coungil,
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34 Transactions wilh related paniss

() Trarspetions wilh kiy manogement perscnnal (KMP)

Page |
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KMP incluga the Mayor, Counciliors, Councils Chisf Execulive Officor and same executive manageméant. The compensalion paid o

KMP for in each year oo mpnises:

& of bensfit Additianal 2024 2023
|mformartion 5 %
TaaH] IREREE | Eli"2.135i
PRI [EIGEE
24{a)fii) 18,574

1,008,387

[} Shadt-term employes benafils nclucs wages. sa'anies, paid annual leava and peid sick Iseve and non-manetary benetils (such a5

privabe use af & modor wahicla)

(i) Poal-ernphopment bamalils are suparannaalion antibam anla.
{iif) Long-berm berefits are long servce leave

Datailed remuneralicn discloswres are provided inthe arnual repar.

Detais of fransactions batwesn Coundcl and KMP are disciosed balow:

Details of Transsction Additional iffarmatian 2024 Pl
L] i
|Fental income charged ko key managament persanngl DN 42,6300 4,640]

|b) Transactions with other related partios

Oibeor related padies indude tha clase family members of KWMP and any entiies controlled ar joindly cantrolled by KMP or Their doss
family members. Close family members indude, sbings, a spouse, dhild and dependant of 2 KMP o fheir spouase.

Delails of ransachans babween Counsl and alkar related padlies am diacloaad bakiy!

Dretails of Transaction i:ff::::i::ﬁ !ﬂ:l Iiﬂ
pis and charges chargad o cose Bmily members of key managament persorm s il - 1.785
Rapial income charged I close tamily membsars of key mansgement parsonnel 20N 4,150 7 &
Employes eapmndas for closa family mambers of kay managemenl personrssl s (I 341,634 AFT, ek
wchase of mabenas and seraces from erifes confmiled by key maragermen! parsannal
nd close family members of ey mansgemaen! pesonne 3,403 E.,B.:!!l

(i} Income gensraled fraom fees and changas, rent and workshop income on sarvices provided © key managemen perscnned, doss
tamily mambars of KEMP and jeinky controled enlilies of KMP were on an am's lenglh basiz in sccoedance with Coundls schedue of

fees and chanpas.

(1) &l close famity members of bey managemen! personne| (<8P wers emplayed throwgh & &m's lenglh pracess. They are paid in

accordance with the &ward far the job they perfoem.
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5 Tied granis by project

The Tolksding nobe has hean preparad on cash basls
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Reallecation  Adjusted

Audied  of cpening epening

Balance balances balances Recaipls Receipts  Expenses Balanco

1iRTI2633 10712023 11072023 Grants Other J0/0EI2024

§ | i } ¥ ¥ L
Commanwaalth Governmant Grants
Augtralia Council far the Ars
Yarmbhan Fashion Stele 2023 11.538) - {1,536] - - 1.536
Creathie Autirals 1,853 - 1853 . (1,883} -
Tatal a7 . 317 - - [T} -
Department of Communications and the Arts
nciganaws Yisum Arts Incuginy Support (38, T1&) : {38,718) 180, 004 - (230,953} [(TRET)
VOME 2027 - Losal MusioiansFaciiEo: (2,310} 02,310 160,000 130,000 (243, 380 [23,344)
Tailal 141,028 T, A0 B1,282 190,000 - {d74,301) (105039
Depariment of the Prims Minister and Cabinat
COP Like Acliwiies 377,984 - A7 0E4 E B 37T 0ed
MNAIDOL &0 500 . - - 0
Communily Mossage Siar (M) T35 - 3255 - - - 2,125
Tokal 80, TR - L] . . - i ]
Dwpartment of Infrasbructure, Transpart, Regional Desalopment, Communications and [ Ans
LRGT 2020 Trafic Catmimg Dewviops ; . i, - - . 1050
LRCI21-22 [33, 867} - {33,857 R . {4,843]
Ramdts fo Recoey an,rm 20,781 181,023 - (20,781} 181,023
FAGE 2,807 142 - 2807142 105,723 - [2,T12.865) .
LR 22-23 HE RIS - B, B2h . (90, 0040} {Z3,175)
LGGSP - Forpshare Davaioomeant Pan {18,108] {15, 105) - - (&, 525) (#5630
LGGEP - Waler Treatmir! Plad oagracke 350,970 - 350,574 : [E0, 145) 280,53
Tedal 2 BET MOS - 2997 A0& M5 TT - |2 BE43IT) 349,250
Depariment of Social S&rvices
Doy Care Cande 5475 - 5475 E13.7B0 2E4.835 (B35, 728) [51 63657
Tastal 575 - A5 B13,7B0 204,838 G5, 125) |51, 605
Mational Australia Day Council
Nahonal Ausiraia Day Cowocd 1,243 - 1,293 15,000 . (16,243) -
1,243 - 1,243 15,000 - (16243} =

Total - Commonwealth Government 3,344,521 102,310 3448831 1284851 284838 (4,350,901} 575,313
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28 Thed grants by project (continued)
Reallocalicn  Adjusted
hudited  of opening  spening
Ealance balamces  bolances Recaipts Roceipls  Expenses Balance
100723 VOTRN23 T2 Grants Ofhar 0G24
§ $ i ] i ] §
State Government Grants
Departmont of Environment, Science & Innsvation
CEAR 32,180 - 32,150 52,180 - (24,350} “
Ragf Achion Plan - . 00, 004 - 300,000
a2 180 - 32 180 332,180 {E4,360] JOHH D0
Department of Tourism and Sport
Daadly Aclive Sports & Rec Progrom 71502 - TT.A582 7351 - (188, Tr4) G, 64
Achive Covuramily oz rchig [} 2 - _- . . .
Todal 7T 8Tt 21 TT.502 AT 351 - (158,774} BB
Dapartmand of Trealy, Aboriginal and Torres Stralt Istander Partnerships, Communities and the Arts
Cotmmunily Sabaly Pian 57,377 - 57,377 - - (13,184) 44,183
Social Reinvesiment Frojesd 501 - 31,601 . - 31,501
OFY Social Romvestmoen! 15,455 - 15455 - - [25.455) {10000
Service Enfancament ik ] . 27.000 ! . - 27,000
Yamabah Leadnrs Forum 200,000 - 200,000 - - {197, 728 42,208
Showcasing Yarrabah (DATSIF) - - . 47,600 (21,484 ) 26,008
Yarabah Sashivwks (D4 TSP - - - 15,000 - - 1.5, 00
Tekal 331,333 - 331,333 E2 500 - 17 H3T) 1 Fﬁ_km
Department of Local Government Racing and Multicublaral Affalrs
Advanging dhe Plarning Aol 26,523 - 26823 - - - 26823
Sowarage Pumo Slaliong Lipgrads TEZ 350 {TH2,849) - . . . .
Wiorks for Qummansiand 4 161,283 E 151,283 1,312,000 - 11.035.887) a7 360
Sdnte Governmeni Firancial Assisiance (BT, 230) - Bl O Y B 4581 (3.751,148) .
Bukkl Ragd Upgrade Stage 2 [LGGSP) {19,827} . {19,827) - - 19,627 -
Wafer Malns Ungrade {236,820} 403,529 66, 7o 150,111 - (LR R (25, 298]
Warks for Quesnsiand (73,736} FA.T38 - . . . .
Wasla IGCIP | ¥58,340) 50,340 - - - - =
Tola 184008 1,036 257,738 5,275,500 4,01 (6,328,327} 211,880
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€3 Tied grants by praject (continwad)

Healbocalicn  Sd)usbed
Audited of cpening  opening

Page |
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Balance  balapces  bolapces  Receipls  Rocelpts  Experses Balance
1TR2023  WOTIAZY  1AOTIE2d Grants Other SOMPEFI024
£ 5 § ;] § § §

State Government Grants | Gontinued)
Dapartment of Child Satety, Senlors and Disabllity Sarvices
SES Buiting upgracs (65,503 - (65.803) 0,590 . (8013} (43, B3]
MARION R500 . . . . - - -
Local Thriving Commintios 10,000 - 10,000 - - - 100, 200
Flasoiide Samrsons 1432} et S - : - -
Talal {56, Z16) 432 (55,803 29,800 - [8,013) [F3838)
Dwpanimant of Education
Daycare |SP Granl 8,283 - 6,263 4412 - {10.685) -
VBCENGT Cang 808 - CARS " 1 TELBES) -
Toal 13,168 - 13,188 4,412 - (17.580) -
Dapartmant of Envirgament, Sclence and Innovation
Asis - BIA ) - 177 50,000 . (BELO0a) [
(WAF F02 (Cpan ddr) A (001 . S, 000 6,000 . (60,000 .
Fasiion s Woarshis A 240 - 240 - - {240} -
Raogd'siole Liftter Frogram ARG : 7000 : " (7,000} .
Canfainer Exchanga 3,582 - 3,852 25,664 33,270 [78,301) (15.385)
Tatal 65145 - B4, 145 1,668 3,27 {206,541) (15,462}
Deparment of Communities Housing dnd Digitsl Econamy
JRADE - granf 1,255 . 1,288 42 750 - [BA50) 34 545
Interirs Revnode Capilal Progean 639,174 - 3174 - - (F43.801) {104,827 )
Fomeend Ramee Capial Program 1,747 608 = 1,747 808 . B0.281 18,530 1,854,479
Remate indigenows Canilal - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,800
FLME 2007 - Local MusiclansFachfater 3,232 - 282 - 3282 -
Total 2. 387,319 - 2391318 1,542, 750 20281 [FADAt4) 3584 347
Department of Employment, Small Business and Training
Wk Firal Slar 6,003 = {76,093 2271 . (43915 117 736
Tala {78,083} - (T, 083) 2,273 - (43915} [NEnREL]
Department of Transpart and Main Ronds
Cpele Paths Stage 1 20165 - 20165 - - . Fa R
Cyefe Patag Stage ? 34 BED) [RENZ 4 . - (34,568)
Transpor! fafrasircione Development {T.B18) - {7816} 657417 - (BE2,825) (13.374)
Tolal (32,211 - 223215} ERT AT . [BE2 B25) (27,727}
Cueensland Fire Department
SES 141724 = (4.172) 42,034 - {32,357) 5.505
Tobal {4.172h - (4,172 42,034 - (32.387) 5,504
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25 Tied grams by project [eomtinged)]

Reallocation  Adjusiod

Page |

Audited af epaning apEning

Ealance balances balances Rocalpts  Receipls  Exponses Balance

1aTi2023 1WoT20a3 1072023 Grants Other N0 2024

13 £ ] 3 L] ) 3

Seate Government Granls [‘:ﬁﬁtiﬂdtﬂ]
Gueensland Health
ATS! Pubhe Maalth Progrsm 722 {7321} 382244 (202, 508) BABET
Todal [Fa) (7.3} B2 44 (262, B6E) 81,837
Qid Reconstruction Authority
Dheasier RoCownry FUndng AEngamants £ L 4584 - 4,865
ORRRFE {A7.719) {37,718) 12,102 . (85,581) (115,508
REFA 3027 (S0EIT] (=0, 2 EAERT " {1, FTRA0T) (8249, 682)
REPA 723 [71,634) (T1,634d] TOd 816 - {634,850} (A
NONDMP Flood Sy B0.255 E]. 255 : {153,510 (=]
MNONDWFP - Boddahados Road Orainage 114,875 114,875 . 111,310} 3,566
Lpgrada
Gaf Raady 10103 - 10,703 7 Ean !E‘.EED: B.E‘l_
Toilal 0547 - a0 547 1,618.393 [2,771,206) 41,133 BEG)
Natlpna! Indigenows Ausiralizns Agency
Mackel Ganden Foasibilly Sludy 2730 - 27,130 - IF A5
YIME 2079 [Nia4) 1, 000 . 100,000 - {10:0,000) -
BANDOE {5,822} - (5,822} AT PES 1548, 158) 13 e
Total 121,308 = 121,506 47965 (118,158 41,114
Todal - Stabe Qowernmanl 3,080,533 74,189 3,154,722 10,186,601 128542 ['lﬂ.GEﬂ'.!H-} 24,788,347
Other grant previders
Lacal Government Association Queensiznd
Coastal Hazard Adapfabon H-!I.E@ - (49,655 - 48555
Tolal 148,655) - [45.4655) - 45,655
Siate Library of Quesnsland
IncApanous Knowinogs Cente 14,224 14 224 25,183 |25, 193} 14,224
Tonal 14,724 14,224 250,193 {25,183) 14,024
Total - Other grant providors (15,411} 35431} 25,183 24,463 14,124
Total grants 6,388 623 176,498 BA86122 11446425 33377 (150270400 3,370,584
Add back negative (| enclaimed) grants 1,260,244 1,725,871
Unspant grant revenus 7649067 5,104 B2
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Management Certlificate
For the year ended 30 June 2024

These genaral purpose financial stalemeants have been prepared pursuant 1o sections 176 and 177 of the Local Government Regulahion 2012
(the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements,

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Reguiation we certify that:
() the prescrbed requiremants of the Local Goverment Act 2009 and Local Government Rogutation 2012 for the establishmeant and keeping
of acoounts have been complied with in &¥ material respects; and

(i) the paneral purpesa financial statements, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Councl's fransactions for the financial
year and financial position at the end of the year

iy

Daryl Sexton
Mayor

Date: ii l\) / ‘2-4
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Financial Sustainability Statement

LGR s183(b) the current-year financial sustainability statement for the financial year,

audited by the auditor-general
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Current year — Financial Sustainability Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Certificate of Accuracy
For the yesr ended 30 June 2024

This cument-year financial sustainabiity staement has been prepared pursuant 1o Seclion 178 of the Local
Govarnmen! Regulafion 2012 (the requiation)

I accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we cartify that this curent-year financial sustainabiity stalemant
has been accurately caiculeted.

L
plF n

Mayor

Name: Daryl Sexton

oate: 1S 4 10 124
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Befter pubil serwres
INDEFEHNDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

T the Councillors of Yamrabah Aboniginal Shire Counil

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Orpinion

| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Yamabah
Abariginal Shire Council fior the year endad 30 Juns 2024, comprisimg the staterment,

explanatory notes, and the cerificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief
Executive Oificer.

In accordance with 5.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, im my opinion, in all
material respects, the cument year financial sustainability statemenit of Yarrabah Aboriginal
Shire Coundil for the year ended 30 June 2024 has b==n accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Avdifor-Seneral Awdiing Standards, which
inconporate the Australian Auwditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are

further described in the Awuditor's regponsibiliies for fhe audif of the cureant year financial
suafainshility stafemend section of iy report.

| am imdependent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Gode of Efftics for
Profezsiona! Accountaniz (including Independence Sfandards) (the Code) that are relevant
to my awdit of the statement in Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilites
in accordance with the Code and the Awdior-General Auditing Sfandards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
beasis fior noy ogpiniion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| dirzper attention to Mote 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in acoordance with the Financial Managemsnt
(Swstainability) Guideline 2024 for the purposse of fulfiling the couwncil's reporting
responsibilities under the Local Govermment Regulation 2012, As & result, the statermsnt
may not be switable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Cther Information
The councillors are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the information incuded in the entity's annual report for the
year ended 30 June 2024, but does mot include the financial sustainability staterment and our
auditor's repart therson.

At the date of this auditor's report, the available other information in Yamabah Abonginal
Shire Council’s annual report fior the year ended 30 June 2024 was the general-purpose
financial statements, curreni-year financial sustainability statement - contextual ratios, and
the lomg-term fimancial sustainability statement.

Page |
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Befter pubil ferwoes

My opinion an the current year finamcial sustainability statemeant does mot cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion therean.
Howrenrer, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate
cpinicn on the gensral-purposs financial report.

In connection with my audit of the finamncial sustainability statement, my responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
matenially imconsistent with the financial sustainability staterment and my knowledge obiained
in the awdit or othersise appears to be matenially misstated.

If, based on the work | have perfformed, | conclude that there is & matenial missiatement of
this information, | am required o report that fact. | have nothing to report inthis regand.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability
statement

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial susiainability staterment in accordance with the Local Gowemment Regulation 2012,
The councillors responsibility also imcludes such intemal control as the councillors determine
is necessany o enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is
accurately calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Aupditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the cument year financial
sustainability staternent as a whole is free from materal misstatemeant, whetiher due to fraud
or emmor, and to isswe an auditor’s report that imcudes my opinion. Reasonable assuramnce is
a high level of asswrance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordancs with
the Australian Auditing Standards will abaays detect a materal misstatement when it exists.
Misstatemsents can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecomomic decsions of
users taken on the basis of this statemsnt.

My responsibility does not extend to fomning an opinion on the appropristeness or relevance

of the reported ratios, nor on the council's fubure swstainability.

#As part of an audit in accordance with the Auwsiralian Auditing Standards, | exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughowt the audit. | also:

. ldeniify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the statement, whether dus o
fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate o provide a basis for my
apinion. The risk of mot detecting a matenal misstatermnment resuling from frawd is higher
than for one resulfing from ermor, &s frawd may imvolve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemde of intermal conftrol.

] Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design awdit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing am opinion on the effectivensss of the coundl's imtemal contral.

] Evaluate the appropriatensss of matenal accounting policy information used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the coundl.
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® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Befter pubil rerwices

| commumnicate with the council regarding., among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant awdit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intermal control that | identify durimg oy awdit.

Mogb-

William Cunmningham
as delegate of the Auditor-General

21 October 20024

Cueensland Audit Office
Brishans
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Current year — Financial Sustainability Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Page |

This currant-year financial sustainabdity statement - contextual ratos has teen preparad pursuant to Saction 178 of

the Local! Goverrvnan! Regulation 2012 (ihe requlaton).

In accordance wilh Section 212(5) of the Regulalion we cerlify that this current-yaar financial sustainabiily stalemenl

has been accurately calcuiated

(M
Mayor

Name: Daryl Sexton
Daw: l‘) ) |0 / 1‘*

oate: 15 1 \0 ;24
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Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council
Unaudited — Long Term Financial Sustainability Statement — Contextual Ratios

For the vear ended 30 June 2024

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2024

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (the
Regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability statement has been accurately
calculated.

h)
Daryl Sexton Ricqar ght
Mayor ief Exgtutive Officer

Date: ‘_S:_/(o I’_lf(,— Date:li _/»_\il '2’4('
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LGR s183(d) the auditor-general's audit reports about the general-purpose financial
statement and the current year financial sustainability statement

® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Hetter public servioes

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the councillors of Yamabah Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion
| have audited the financial report of Yarmabah Aboriginal Shire Council.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 Juns 2024, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including material accounting
policy information and the certificate given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

In my opinion, the fimancial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2024, and of its
financial performance for the year then ended; and

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2008, the Local Government Regulation 2012 and
Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
section of my report.

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Sfandards) (the Code) that are relevant
to my audit of the financial report in Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Awdifor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basi=s for my opinion.

Other information

The councillors are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprizes the information included in the entity’s annual report for the
yvear ended 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial report and our auditor's report
thereon.

At the date of this auditor's report, the available other information in Yarmakbah Aboriginal
Shire Council’s annual report for the year ended 20 June 2024 was the current year financial
sustainability statement, cumrent year financial sustainability statement - contextual ratios
and long-term financial sustainakbility statement.
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® Queensland
® @ Audit Office

Setrer public services

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Howsver, as required by the Local
Govemment Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate opinion on the cument year financial
sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, bazed on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
thiz informaticn, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a frue
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such intermal control as the
councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermmor.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council’'s ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concemn and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations of the council.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material mizsstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of this financial report.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

https:/hwww_auasb gov.auwfauditors responsibilities’ard.

This description forms part of my auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with s. 40 of the Awditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2024:
a) | received all the information and explanations | reguired

k) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.
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® (Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Local Government Act 2009, and the Local Government Regulation 2012. The applicable
requirements include those for keeping financial records that comectly record and explain the

council's transactions and account balances to enable the preparation of a true and fair
financial report.

M 21 October 2024

William Cunningham Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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